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FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

SECRETARY-GENERAL'S STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

1 In accordance with financial regulation 12.10, | have the honour to submit to the Council, for its
examination and onward transmission to the Assembly, the financial statements of the International
Maritime Organization (IMO) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

2 The Report of the External Auditor on the audit of the 2020 financial statements, together with
his opinion thereon, are also submitted to the Council as prescribed under financial regulation 12.10.

3 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS), as prescribed by financial regulation 11.1, adopted by the Assembly
through resolution A.1017(26) effective 1 January 2010, and in line with the United Nations policy that
IPSAS be used as the accounting standards by United Nations system organizations.

4 In 1948, an international conference in Geneva adopted a convention formally establishing the
Intergovernmental Maritime Consultative Organization (IMCO). The Convention entered into force in
1958 and the Organization came into being in 1959. In 1982, the original name was changed to the
International Maritime Organization. The Headquarters of the Organization are in London and its
complement is approximately 320 staff members, including project staff, Member States Professionals,
and temporary employees. IMO's principal place of business, as well as the names and addresses of
its General Counsel, actuary, principal banker and external auditor are indicated in annex 1 to these
financial statements.

5 Within the meaning of IPSAS, IMO also controls the World Maritime University (WMU) and the
IMO International Maritime Law Institute (IMLI), the financial records of which are presented within these
financial statements. IMO is not a controlled entity within the meaning of IPSAS, its ultimate decision-
making body being its Assembly of 174 Member States, with an elected Council of 40 Member States
performing, in accordance with Article 26 of its constitutive Convention, all functions of the Assembly,
with the exception of some technical matters, between sessions of the Assembly.

6 The purposes of the Organization, as summarized in Article 1(a) of its Convention, are "to
provide machinery for cooperation among Governments in the field of governmental regulation and
practices relating to technical matters of all kinds affecting shipping engaged in international trade; to
encourage and facilitate the general adoption of the highest practicable standards in matters concerning
maritime safety, efficiency of navigation and prevention and control of marine pollution from ships; and
to deal with administrative and legal matters related to the purposes set out in this Article".
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MARITIME ACTIVITIES IN 2020

7 2020 saw IMO continuing to actively pursue its targets and objectives in a wide range of subject
areas, despite the challenges and difficulties resulting from the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Some of
the highlights of the year for the Organization are summarized below.

Addressing the consequences of the pandemic

8 In September, for the first time in the history of the Organization, an extraordinary session of
all five IMO Committees, i.e. Maritime Safety Committee (MSC), Legal Committee (LEG), Marine
Environmental Protection Committee (MEPC), Technical Cooperation Committee (TC) and Facilitation
Committee (FAL) (ALCOM/ES) took place virtually to consider and adopt interim guidance to facilitate
remote sessions of the Committees during the pandemic. This allowed IMO's important technical work
to continue until such a time when its Headquarters can be reopened for physical meetings. The aim of
the guidance is to facilitate the work of the Committees using a structured and transparent methodology
aimed at standardizing the conduct of remote sessions in view of exceptional circumstances. The
guidance is intended for temporary use, during the pandemic, and will be kept under review as
necessary, to incorporate experience gained in the conduct of remote sessions.

9 Following the ALCOM/ES session, MSC met separately in extraordinary session to consider
urgent action to resolve the humanitarian and safety crisis faced by the international shipping community
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Committee adopted a resolution on Recommended action
to facilitate ship crew change, access to medical care and seafarer travel during the COVID-19
pandemic, which urges specific action to address the issue, including designating seafarers as key
workers with access to the necessary safe travel arrangements. The resolution expresses deep concern
about the significant challenges being faced by the global shipping community to effect crew changes
and repatriation of seafarers as a result of the pandemic, recognizing the crucial role of seafarers in
supplying vital goods across the globe.

10 IMO started issuing guidance for the shipping sector on how to address the fall-out from the
pandemic at the end of January 2020, realizing that many Member States wished to have uniform
recommendations on how to address certain issues. This guidance has been issued as the Circular
Letter N0.4204 series and contains technical recommendations as well as joint statements with other
UN Agencies on a variety of issues. IMO also established, in April 2020, a Seafarer Crisis Seafarer
Crisis Action Team (SCAT) to help with a variety of critical situations, often collaborating with other UN
organizations and industry associations. During the year, SCAT has intervened, often successfully, in
cases involving thousands of individual seafarers.

Maritime safety

11 In 2020, the Maritime Safety Committee (MSC) continued its regulatory work as far as possible
under the prevailing conditions. Due to the pandemic, a large number of meetings were cancelled or
postponed. However, the MSC met, apart from the aforementioned extraordinary session, for its 102"
regular session in November 2020 to consider the reports of its Sub-Committees in order to enable them
to continue their work.

12 Concerning its ongoing work, the Committee, among many other things, continued its audit
programme under the Goal-based ship construction standards for bulk and oil tankers (GBS);
progressed the work on maritime autonomous surface ships (MASS); completed the development of
guidelines for fishing vessels and pleasure yachts not engaged in trade operating in polar waters;
approved SN.1/Circ.340 on Recognition of the Indian Regional Navigation Satellite System (IRNSS) as
a component of the World-wide radionavigation system and adopted resolution MSC.480(102) on
Performance standards for shipborne Japanese Quasi-Zenith Satellite System (QZSS) receiver
equipment; and approved a draft revised Assembly resolution on Guidelines for Vessel Traffic Services,
for submission to A 32 with a view to adoption.
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13 The Committee also continued its work on measures to improve domestic ferry safety with the
main objective of developing framework Model Regulations on Domestic Ferry Safety which are
expected to be adopted at MSC 104 in October 2021. The Secretariat remained actively engaged with
stakeholders and, jointly with the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific (ESCAP), conducted a virtual expert group meeting which inter alia resulted in the adoption of
the “Bangkok declaration on enhancing domestic ferry safety in Asia and the pacific region and the
development of model regulation on domestic ferry safety”.

Facilitation

14 Concerning maritime security, IMO has focussed on assisting States to implement a multi-
agency and multi-disciplinary approach, with a particular focus on national organization and inter-agency
cooperation, including the establishment of national maritime security and facilitation committees. IMO’s
Global Enhancement of Maritime Security programme supported countries in enhancing security
measures to protect ships and ports from threats posed by terrorism; piracy and armed robbery;
smuggling of arms, drugs, and illicit goods; and other illicit activities. All technical assistance provided
in 2020 was delivered through virtual platforms.

15 MSD started implementing a major European Union (EU) funded port security project for
Eastern and Southern Africa and the Indian Ocean region, in partnership with the United Nations Office
on Drugs and Crimes (UNODC) and the International Criminal Police Organization (INTERPOL). A
similar project for the Red Sea region, also EU funded, is expected to start in 2021.

16 Work to address piracy and armed robbery in the Gulf of Guinea (GoG) continued to be at the
top of IMO’s agenda, with support to the Interregional Coordination Centre (ICC) and its strategic role
on the implementation of the Yaoundé Code of Conduct (YCC), as well as the G7++ Friends of the Gulf
of Guinea (G7++FoGG) to coordinate regional and international initiatives. IMO also continued to assist
with the implementation of the Djibouti Code of Conduct and the Jeddah amendments; provided
assistance for training under the Djibouti Regional Training Centre (DRTC) umbrella; explored options
for online capacity-building activities; and promoted the implementation of Best Management Practices
(BMP) for West Africa and global counter piracy guidance for companies, masters and seafarers.

Environmental protection

17 In 2020, the Marine Environment Protection Committee (MEPC) pushed forward with a number
of measures aimed at supporting the achievement of the objectives set out in the Initial IMO Strategy
on reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from ships, and in particular, approved draft
amendments to MARPOL Annex VI concerning mandatory goal-based technical and operational
measures to reduce carbon intensity of international shipping; adopted amendments to strengthen
existing mandatory requirements for new ships to be more energy efficient; adopted an MEPC resolution
on Encouragement of Member States to develop and submit voluntary National Action Plans to address
GHG emissions from ships; approved the Fourth IMO GHG Study 2000; and approved the terms of
reference and arrangements for the conduct of a comprehensive impact assessment of short-term
measures.

18 MEPC made good progress in the implementation of the experience-building phase associated
with the Ballast Water Management (BWM) Convention and in particular, adopted amendments to the
BWM Convention regarding commissioning the testing of ballast water management systems and
approved associated Guidance for the commissioning testing of ballast water management systems and
Guidance on ballast water sampling and analysis.

19 The MEPC noted by correspondence, that some 61 technical cooperation activities related to
the protection of the marine environment had been implemented by the Marine Environment Division in
2019, under IMO's Integrated Technical Cooperation Programme (ITCP), covering all geographical
regions and IMO's priority environmental conventions and protocols. MEPC also noted by
correspondence, that the Secretariat has continued to coordinate and manage a number of Major
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Projects related to emerging environmental issues that have taken a thematic and results-based
intervention approach, to assist IMO Member States to improve implementation of IMO environment-
related conventions and protocols. The next session of the MEPC (June 2021), will consider ITCP
implementation for 2020, including the Secretariat's efforts to mitigate the significant impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on ITCP delivery, through alternative implementation modalities (e-learning, virtual
delivery etc).

20 During 2020, IMO was faced with several urgent and highly politicized oil pollution response
related matters that required immediate attention and the support of the Organization, notably related
to preparedness and response in respect of FSO SAFER in Yemen; and the deployment of an expert
to support the Government of Mauritius in the response to an oil spill from MV Wakashio.

21 The governing bodies of the London Convention/Protocol (LC/LP) continued their work, making
further progress with the development of additional guidance to support the implementation of the
treaties at national level. This included approving guidance on interim action levels (IALS) to support
dredged material management in countries currently lacking the necessary technology and/or resources
and noting ongoing work to finalize the further guidance on disposal site selection. Furthermore, the
governing bodies noted the ongoing efforts to consolidate the work carried out by the LC/LP bodies on
the issue of marine litter and microplastics, and to identify potential gaps in that work and possible further
actions for the LC/LP, a consultant's report on the issue will be considered by the Scientific Groups at
their next session in 2021.

22 Supporting the work of IMO on environmental matters, the Joint Group of Experts on the
Scientific Aspects of Marine Environmental Protection (GESAMP), for which IMO acts as the Secretariat,
continued its work in eight dedicated working groups, and published several reports, including on the
assessment of risks associated with plastics and microplastics in the marine environment, and a global
coastal ecosystem assessment for the past century.

Legal matters

23 The training programme on the implementation of IMO's instruments into domestic
legislation continues and is expanding. It provides participants from IMO Member States with the
opportunity to familiarize themselves with the Organization, its structure and the treaty making process
at IMO. Treaties covered by the IMO Member State Audit Scheme as well as the civil liability conventions
are presented and analysed. The main focus of the programme is on the implementation of those
treaties into national legislation. The participants learn drafting techniques and best practices in the
implementation process. Special attention is paid to the implementation of those amendments to IMO
treaties which are adopted through the tacit acceptance procedure. The ultimate goal of the programme
is to furnish participants with the knowledge that is necessary to develop national legislation and to keep
it up to date to ensure compliance with IMO standards. Two workshops were held in 2019, but because
of the pandemic, no courses could be held in 2020. However, much of the workshop curriculum is
presented by IMO Legal Officers to students at the World Maritime University and at the International
Maritime Law Institute. In addition, IMO Legal Officers provided instruction to the new IMLI course on
the Law of Treaties in 2020, a course which many current IMO delegates attended.

24 With the enactment of ST/AI/2017/1, which completely overhauled the process for
disciplinary action at the United Nations, the IMO Legal Affairs Office worked closely with the
Administration Division to develop revised procedures that ensure the same due process rights as are
granted in the revised UN system. Decisions of the United Nations Appeals Tribunal announced in
December 2019 required process changes to the appeals system. Starting in early 2020, IMO
implemented a new system for its first instance appeals body, the Staff Appeals Board (SAB). For each
case before it., the SAB is now chaired by an external consultant with judicial experience. A roster of
external judges has been created and workload is distributed appropriately.

25 As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, one of the primary activities of the Legal Affairs
and External Relations Division in 2020 was assisting all IMO organs in the development of interim
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procedures for the conduct of remote meetings. The IMO Council held two extraordinary sessions by
correspondence and one remote regular session incorporating virtual and correspondence methods.
The IMO Committees for the first time in their history, met simultaneously in extraordinary session
September 2020 to adopt similar procedures. Throughout these processes, the Legal Affairs and
External Relations Division, in particular the Legal Affairs Office and the External Relations Office,
provided extensive advice and support.

26 Seafarers faced a crisis during 2020 as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic. Because of
travel and border restrictions enacted by countries to halt the spread of the virus, more than 400,000
seafarers were stranded on their vessels, unable to return to their home countries after their contracts
expired. A similar number could not travel to get to ship to relieve those onboard and begin their
contracts. The seafarer's crew change issues became a crisis on three levels, humanitarian, safety and
economic. In response, the Secretary-General formed the Seafarer's Crisis Action Team (SCAT),
tasked with three main objectives: (1) handling individual cases reported to the IMO by seafarers (2)
conducting bilateral and multilateral diplomatic to help ease the crisis and (3) development of policy
guidance to allow member states to allow seafarers to conduct crew changes safely and efficiently. In
total, the SCAT handled nearly 500 individual cases, conducted more than 30 bilateral and multi-lateral
engagements and developed extensive policy guidance, primarily through the Circular Letter 4204
Series (at addendum 33 by 31 December 2020. The SCAT also participated in the negotiations resulting
in the adoption of a UN General Assembly Resolution on the crew change crisis. (UNGA 75/17)

27 The Legal Affairs office also provided numerous legal advices to the Secretariat, the
Member States, the Council, the Committees and Subcommittees. The depositary processed more than
100 depositary actions by Member States in 2020, representing a typical workload for the depositary
staff.

Outreach

28 IMO's public facing visibility showed marked gains. The twin stories of the adoption of the
implementation of the initial strategy for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from ships, and
the seafarer's crew change crisis, described above were far and away the top IMO stories for
2020, garnering global media attention for IMO at unprecedented levels. IMO exposure in the
global, mainstream media on other issues became much more frequent than previously. In many
cases, stories regarding the crew change crisis were carried by more than 800 media outlets in a
single day, with an estimated reach of more than 1 billion readers. IMO engagement through social
media is at an all-time high and continues to grow. The IMO Twitter feed for the Day of the
Seafarer celebration on 25 June 2020 under the theme "Seafarers are key workers" had millions
of impressions worldwide. IMO’s followers on Facebook, Twitter and Instagram continue to grow.
Views and original content in the French and Spanish languages derived from the IMO multilingual
website launched in May 2015 have also expanded, and original content in these languages
expanded in 2020. Video production improved in both quantity and quality, and the IMO YouTube
channel continues to be populated with quality productions. Many IMO Goodwill Maritime
Ambassadors (IMOGMA), in addition to their outreach work to attract young people to the maritime
professions, also assisted the SCAT in resolution of cases in their home countries.

29 The annual World Maritime Day celebration was held virtually in 2020 and the virtual forum
on the theme "Sustainable Shipping for a Sustainable Planet" was well-attended. The associated 2020
parallel event, hosted by a volunteering Member State, (South Africa) was postponed to 2021 as a result
of the pandemic.

30 The Maritime Knowledge Centre expanded its collection on 2020 and completed a project
to have all Assembly, Council and Committee resolutions in a searchable database. The online
catalogue, which went live in 2019, was well-used by persons seeking information but unable to visit the
MKC in person due to closure of the Headquarters building. These two developments greatly improved
the accessibility of information in the Maritime Knowledge Centre for delegates, academics and the
general public.
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Technical Cooperation

31 The COVID-19 pandemic impacted the technical cooperation work of IMO and changed its
modus operandi. Due to the suspension of official travel, "traditional” technical cooperation delivery was
largely suspended throughout 2020. However, the Secretariat took the opportunity to adapt its working
practices to meet the new challenges and to develop new methodologies, taking into account the
lessons learned. The Organization therefore continued to provide technical assistance to its Member
States, particularly developing countries, to enhance the implementation of IMO instruments, albeit in
different ways. Technical assistance is funded through both the TC Fund and extra-budgetary resources
and is enhanced through the formal partnership agreements that the Organization has reached with
many of its Member States and various international and regional organizations.

32 In 2020, IMO’s technical cooperation work operated within a framework of regional and global
programmes, assisting Member States to implement IMO instruments and supporting institutional
capacity-building, primarily through virtual delivery of technical assistance activities. This included
training at the national, regional and global levels, provision of fellowships, conduct of needs
assessments, support to the IMO Women in Maritime programme (and Sustainable Development Goal
5); support to the SCAT through conduct of regional webinars; participating in a range of other webinars
and online activities; and enhanced cooperation with the World Maritime University (WMU) and the IMO
International Maritime Law Institute (IMLI). Strategic work included: developing training material, e-
learning and online learning programmes; adapting the Integrated Technical Cooperation Programme
(ITCP) for the 2020-2021 biennium to reflect the "new realities"; and commissioning and preparatory
activities of newly launched thematic long-term projects, and delivery of ongoing programmes under the
auspices of the technical divisions and the Department of Partnerships and Projects (DPP). Details of
the impact of COVID-19 on activities delivered in 2020 were reported to the seventieth session of the
Technical Cooperation Committee (TC 70) which was held virtually in December 2020 (document TC
70/13.1). The Integrated Technical Cooperation Programme Annual Report for 2020, will be presented
to TC 71, scheduled for September 2021, via document TC 71/3.

33 The wide range of technical assistance activities delivered by the Organization underlines the
important role that technical cooperation plays in the work of IMO to facilitate the implementation of its
regulatory instruments and will become increasingly important in assisting Member States with their
post-COVID-19 recovery.

34 Extra-budgetary activities and resources continued to be a vital part of delivering the strategic
objectives of the Organization as well as the successful implementation of IMO's treaties and technical
instruments by Member States. As part of the review and reform of the Organization’s resources, and
considering the increasing focus of the Organization in implementation as established in Strategic
Direction 1, the Secretary-General, in March 2020, amalgamated two areas of the Organization from
the Marine Environment Division and the Technical Cooperation Division to establish the Department of
Partnerships and Projects (DPP) in order to enhance the level of collaboration and partnership both
within the Secretariat and with external partners. The work performed by the functions remain the same,
although the change provides a greater degree of strategic focus and emphasis on this critical aspect
of our work, strengthen the mobilization of extra-budgetary resources and in so doing ensure that IMO
plays an effective role in developing and strengthening global, regional and national partnerships
between donors and IMO’s Member States.

35 DPP has been active in four core functional areas 1) Implementation of IMO's Long-term
Resource Mobilization Strategy 2) coordination for partnership development process within IMO by
assisting with the negotiation, formalization and reporting on partnership agreements 3) implementation
of a portfolio of donor-supported, long-term projects to support the technical cooperation objectives of
IMO and the implementation of the SDGs and 4) promote and advocate maritime innovation and R&D
through partnerships.
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STRATEGIC PLAN FOR 2018 - 2023

36 In 2017, the work on the development of a new Strategic Plan had been finalized with the
adoption of the Strategic Plan for the six-year period 2018 to 2023 by the Assembly in December 2017
(A.1110(29)), including the first-ever Vision Statement for the Organization, 7 new focused Strategic
Directions with corresponding performance indicators, as well overarching principles that should be
taken into account in all of the Organization’s work.

37 The vision of IMO for the period 2018 to 2023 is as follows:

¢ IMO will uphold its leadership role as the global regulator of shipping, promote greater
recognition of the sector's importance and enable the advancement of shipping, while
addressing the challenges of continuing developments in technology and world trade and the
need to meet the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

e To achieve this, IMO will focus on the review, development and implementation of and
compliance with IMO instruments in its pursuit to proactively identify, analyse and address
emerging issues and support Member States in their implementation of the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development.

38 As IMO continues to carry out its work, the following strategic directions set out the areas of
particular focus for the period 2018 to 2023:

e SD 1: Improve implementation

e SD 2: Integrate new and advancing technologies in the regulatory framework
e SD 3: Respond to climate change

e SD 4: Engage in ocean governance

e SD 5: Enhance global facilitation and security of international trade

e SD 6: Ensure regulatory effectiveness

e SD 7: Ensure organizational effectiveness



FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Risk

39 At its 100th session in June 2008, the Council approved the Organization's Risk Management
Framework (RMF), consisting of a Risk Management Policy, Risk Management Definitions and a Risk
Management Process. It requested the Secretariat to apply the RMF to the strategic directions and high-
level actions falling under the Secretary-General's responsibility as well as to the Secretariat-related key
objectives for 2009. A similar exercise has been conducted periodically since that time, the results being
reported to the Council. However, at its 112th and 113th sessions in 2014, the Council decided that the
RMF should only be applied to the Secretariat’s Business Plan and subsequently approved the revised
RMF for future iterations of the Secretariat’s risk management exercise.

40 In addition to the RMF, IMO has an established framework of internal controls, including internal
oversight, designed to maximize the effective and efficient use of its resources and safeguard its assets.

Governance

41 The Organization's governance is provided through the Assembly and the Council and is
defined in the IMO Convention. The key management personnel of IMO consist of the Secretary-General
and eight Divisional Directors and Departmental Chief. The key management personnel of WMU and
IMLI consists of the President and Director, respectively. Related party disclosures in line with IPSAS
requirements are accordingly included in the notes to the financial statements. The Council is
responsible for providing intergovernmental support and specific policy direction to, and supervision of,
the activities of IMO. In view of its State-membership composition, the Council is not considered a related
party as defined by IPSAS.

Funding

42 IMO's activities are mainly funded by assessed contributions on its Member States and
Associate  Members. Voluntary contributions from Member States, governmental agencies,
intergovernmental bodies and other public, private and non-governmental sources may support
financially certain activities of the Organization, the finances of which may receive further support
through commercial activities (including the sale of publications and catering and conference services);
and through miscellaneous revenue (including interest on financial assets). Indirect support cost income,
earned through third party agreements with donors, is also used to fund activities provided for in the
regular budget. IMO is in good financial health with adequate resources to meet its mandated activities.

Sustainability

43 In considering the Organization's financial sustainability, an evaluation of the consequences of
any significant delays or defaults in payments from Member States or any reductions in contributions
from donors in the context of the recent known market volatility has been made, and a review was also
made to determine whether there could be a consequential reduction in the scale of operations and/or
the delivery of the Strategic Plan, the High-level Action Plan and the Divisional Business Objectives.
Having considered IMO's projected activities and the corresponding risks, a determination has been
made to note that the Organization has adequate resources to continue to operate in the medium term.
Overall, based on operating assumptions and known risks and mitigations, the Organization will continue
as a "going concern" in the context of preparing IMO's financial statements.



FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

44 The assertion above is supported by: i) the budget approved by the Assembly for the 2020-
2021 biennium; ii) the scope and content of the Strategic Plan prepared for the period 2018-2023; iii)
the net assets held at the end of the 2020 financial period; iv) the high level of collections of the assessed
contribution of over 95% for the past 10 years; and v) the trend in donor support that has been sustaining
IMO's mandate, including delivery of technical cooperation work, as determined by the Council and
Assembly.

FINANCIAL AND BUDGET PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

45 The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic in mid-March 2020 became a global challenge and
impacted the global economy in an unprecedent manner. However, the Organization continued to focus
on the effective implementation of its programmatic activities. The Organization quickly adjusted to these
unprecedent circumstances and there was a robust response from Member Sates/donors in addressing
the pandemic during this period. The following are various financial considerations of Covid-19 on the
2020 financial year.

46 The limitations on physical movements that applied during the lockdown resulted in majority of
staff and personnel working remotely. This sudden change to remote working was facilitated by an
accelerated changeover to increased use of mobile office tools - particularly laptops - which occurred in
the first months of 2020. In the long-term, this change may result in more personnel transitioning to
remote working arrangements.

Financial analysis

47 Liquidity and solvency ratios for 2020 and 2019 as summarized below indicate an improvement
in the Organisation’s situation.

Table |

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Description of ratio

Current ratio?

Current assets: current liabilities 9.95 7.86
Total assets: total liabilities?
Assets: liabilities 1.45 1.37
Cash ratio®
Cash plus short-term investments: current liabilities 9.46 7.36
Quick ratio*
Cash plus short-term investments plus accounts receivable: current
liabilities 9-55 744

48 The closing net asset position presented in Statement | and in Chart 1 below amounted to

£27,006,313 (2019: £21,547,287), which shows a healthy financial situation for the Organization as a
whole, with an increase of £5,459,026 (2019: £2,558,199) from the opening balance on 1 January 2020.
The net operating surplus of £6,408,300 offset by the currency exchange loss of £949,274 accounted
for the increase of £5,459,026.

LA high ratio indicates an entity’s ability to pay off its short-term liabilities.
2 high ratio is a good indicator of solvency.

3 The cash ratio is an indicator of an entity’s liquidity by measuring the amount of cash, cash equivalents and invested funds there are in current assets to
cover current liabilities.

4 The quick ratio is more conservative than the current ratio because it excludes inventory and other current assets, which are more difficult to turn into
cash. A higher ratio means a more liquid current position.
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49 The increase in cash and cash equivalents during 2020 is due to the collection of Member
States assessment remaining consistent with 2019 at around 99% and an increase in donor voluntary
contribution. Furthermore, there has been a reduction in expenditure due to the restrictions imposed by
Covid-19 pandemic, especially travel and IMO’s Integrated Technical Cooperation Programme.

Chart I: Net asset and cash position as at 31 December 2020

100
90 il 80.49 81.16
80 73.78

70 59.64 58.94
60

50
40
30 27.01 21.55
20
10

GBP (MILLIONS)

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Cash

2020 =2019

50 Looking, again, at the closing net assets position, it should be noted that the reserves available
to the Organization for future use are not without restrictions. Note 2.13 in the financial statements
breaks down the overall reserve picture into the Organization's major funds, and it may be seen that, of
the overall £27,006,313 (2019: £21,547,287) closing balance, £21,717,241 (2019: £16,818,817) relates
to Multi-donor Trust Funds or the net position under bilateral agreements with individual donors, as
shown in the below chart. Such funds can only be applied in accordance with the Terms of Reference
of the Fund concerned or the appropriate contractual agreement with the donor, respectively, and, as
such, there are significant restrictions over their future use.

51 It can also be seen from the chart below that the Working Capital Fund, the Headquarters
Capital Fund and the Technical Cooperation Fund are all in a relatively strong financial position at
present — noting that much of the surplus on the Trading Fund will, in due course, be transferred to the
Technical Cooperation Fund in accordance with Assembly Resolution A.1112(30). The Termination
Benefit Fund reflects the fact that the Organization's long-term After Service Health Insurance (ASHI)
liability stands at £43,962,547 (2019: £41,740,761). While the Assembly set aside funds of £9,231,519
to meet these liabilities by means of Assembly Resolutions, the majority of these liabilities are presently
unfunded and are reflected in the Termination Benefit Fund deficit as at 31 December 2020 of
£35,485,581 (2019: £35,460,868).
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Chart Il: Fund balances and reserves as at 31 December 2020
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52 Inventories, reflecting our stock of publications held for re-sale has decreased by 55% to
£474,945 when compared with prior year’s balance of £1,061,365. This is partially due to a reduction of
purchases as a result of Covid-19 and an increase in provisions which covers not only titles that were
superseded in a given year, but also the feasibility of sales of all stock holdings in the foreseeable future.

53 The total value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets held by the Organization
as at 31 December 2020 has decreased to £1,239,061 (2019: £1,589,978) and to £8,998
(2019: £112,201) respectively. The decrease during the year is the net effect of depreciation and
amortization totalling £765,891 and disposal of £449,420 of which £387,566 (86%) relate to
Communication and IT Equipment. This is offset by acquisitions totalling £311,771 of which 95%
(£295,464) was for Communication and IT equipment, Conference Equipment and Vehicle.

54 The long-term impact of the lessons learned from the Covid-19 pandemic are still being
evaluated and it is too early to assess whether any possible changes may have an impact of the carrying
value of the Organization’s assets, as such no Covid-19 related asset impairment events were recorded
during the annual asset impairment review.

55 There has been an overall decrease of 14% in the Organization’s current liabilities, from
£10,022,816 to £8,582,324. The most significant decrease being non-exchange payables and accruals
balance relates to donor contributions regarding which there are performance obligations failing which
funds have to be returned, referred to as conditional liabilities. On fulfilment of conditions, revenues are
recognized. All conditional liabilities are received from the European Commission and constitute 56%
(2019: 65%) of non-exchange payables and accruals of £3,142,945 (2019: £4,131,025).

56 Liabilities relating to employee benefits are mainly for post-employment obligations to current
staff and retirees for After Service Health Insurance (ASHI), repatriation benefits and accrued annual
leave. These liabilities were subjected to actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2019, an exercise the
Organization conducts every two years.
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57 The increase in non-current employee benefits from £48,819,639 to £51,060,884 (5%) reflects
the projection for year, as at 31 December 2020 carried out as part of the actuarial valuation as at 31
December 2019. The estimation was based on the assumptions the data provided for 31 December
2019 remans broadly unchanged.

58 The financial performance for 2020 reported a surplus of £5,459,026 (revenue minus expenses,
including currency exchange loss) compared to a surplus of £3,845,117 in 2019. The increase, despite
lower total revenues of £56,187,264 (2019: £60,501,704) is largely due to a decrease in overall
expenses and currency exchange fluctuations of £50,728,238 (2019: £56,656,587).

59 The total revenue for 2020 was £56,187,264, a decrease of £4,314,440 from 2019 where it was
£60,501,704. Assessed contribution of £33,391,000 accounted for 59% (2019: 55%) of the total revenue
followed by voluntary contributions from donors at 22% (2019:19%), commercial activities at 18% (2019:
25%), and other revenue at 1% (2019: 1%).

60 Revenue from commercial activities has decreased by 33%, from £15,125,571 during 2019 to
£10,198,148 during the reporting period. The most significant being cafeteria sales, £155,301 (2019:
£1,264,755), which has decreased by 88%. This is due to the closure of the office as a result of the
pandemic and the fact that 2019 was an Assembly year.

61 Revenue from donor contribution are recognized on signature of donor agreement or when
conditions are met where the agreement contains a condition. Therefore, the revenue fluctuates from
year to year due to the timing of new donor contributions and the disbursement of obligations for those
agreements with a condition and its acceptance by the donor.

62 The IPSAS board has introduced a series of exposure drafts® that are expected to address
issues of revenue and expense recognition in the public sector. It is expected these set of high-quality
standards will permit enhanced financial reporting and measurement of results.

63 Total operating expenses for 2020 amounted to £49,778,964 compared with £55,626,517 in
2019, a decrease of £5,847,553 (11%). Staff and other personnel costs remain the most significant
portion of the Organization’s operating expenditure at 74% (2019: 65%), followed by Supplies,
consumables and other running costs at 13% (2019: 10%) and training and development at 4% (2019:
8%).

64 It should be noted that the financial performance of revenue and expenses reflected in
Statement |l (Statement of Financial Performance) is presented on an IPSAS accrual basis and thus is
different in its measurement and accounting from the budgetary performance of receipts and payments
reflected in Statement V(a) (IMO Only Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts) which
is prepared on a modified cash/accrual basis. For example, the budget is prepared to reflect the
purchase of new property, plant and equipment rather than the depreciation charge over their useful life.
Similarly, the budget approved by the Assembly does not cover extra-budgetary or donor funds, while
the financial statements cover the entirety of the Organization’s financial position and performance. The
difference in amounts between the two statements is reconciled to the cash flow statement (Statement
IV), that reconciliation being provided in Note 5 to the Financial Statements. For instance, the assessed
contribution (i.e., invoiced amounts of £33,391,000) for the year is recognized in full as revenue in
Statement Il, whereas actual amounts received, including those related to assessments for prior years
(£33,141,500) are shown as Actual in Statement V(a). Likewise, while expense in Statement Il includes
£765,890 (2019: £944,808) for depreciation and amortization on an accrual basis, that amount, as it is
not a cash payment during the year, is not included in Statement V(a) which instead includes the cost
of purchased assets.

5 ED 70, Revenue with Performance Obligation; ED 71, Revenue without Performance Obligations and ED 72, Transfer
Expenses
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65 Overall, the assessment collection rate is in line with expectations for an Assembly year with
£33 million (99%) of the assessed income for 2020 received compared to £33 million (99%) of the
assessed income for 2019 received in 2019.

Chart lll: Status of assessment collections

Assessment paid (£'000) Number of Member States
(January to December) (January to December)
32,965 33,036 200
150
100
50
0
2020 2019 2020 2019
u Full payment  ® Partially/Unpaid ® Full payment  ® Partially/Unpaid
Table Il
Assessment Year Amount £'000
Full payment 130 143 Full payment 32,965 33,036
Partially/Unpaid 47 34 Partially/Unpaid 426 206
Total 177 177 Total 33,391 33,242
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Budget performance

66 The 31t session of the Assembly held in December 2019 adopted resolution A.1132(31) on
the Results-Based budget for the 2020-2021 biennium, in which it approved the budget for the financial
periods 2020 and 2021 for the Organization’s core funds. This included an appropriation for 2020 of
£52,855,000 to be funded in part through projected income of £51,823,000. In considering the
Organization’s financial performance against its budgetary expectations for 2020, the overwhelming
external factor has been the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

67 Considering first matters related to income, the Organization’s major sources of budgeted
income are shown in the chart below, which shows actual performance in 2020 compared to the final
budget figure — donor and extra-budgetary contributions do not fall under the budgetary approval
process and so are not included in these figures.

Chart IV: Budget income against actual Income by type (in £/000)
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Budget 2020 # Actual 2020
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Assessed contributions Support cost Trading fund Other
68 Overall the assessment income represents just under two thirds of the Organization’s budgeted

income. Assessed contributions of £33,141,500 represents amounts received of £32,965,247 in relation
to the 2020 assessment and £176,253 towards the settlement of arrears from prior years. For 2020 the
total budgeted assessment was £33,391,000. In the context of the COVID-19 pandemic, maintaining a
collection rate of 99% for 2020 represents a strong degree of commitment from IMO’s Member States
to supporting its work in such challenging times.

69 For 2020, Trading Fund income of £9.4m fell short of the amount budgeted by £4.6m (33%).
There is no indication that this represents a permanent downturn in publishing sales revenue, but rather
reflects the unique situation faced in 2020. During the early part of the pandemic, distribution of
publication titles was disrupted as a result of global lockdowns. Much of the publication’s revenue is
produced from a relatively small number of titles, and the disruption in the Organization’s meetings
programme had a consequential impact on the release of new titles. This particularly affected major
titles such as the IMDG Code.

70 This combination of factors could have had an even more dramatic impact, however - the focus
of the publications team during 2020 was on rebuilding core sales and the distribution network,
leveraging electronic publication channels, while limiting costs wherever possible. With the IMO
Headquarters closed due to COVID-19, the despatch of printed publications, usually done in-house, had
to be suspended. In order to keep supplying customers with hard copies, a procurement procedure took
place to identify ways of continuing despatching products. As a result of the success of these efforts,
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printed publications were despatched straight from the printers' facilities and warehouse, facilitating
sales that would otherwise not take place. In addition, provisions were put in place for the Despatch
Team to be prioritized in the reopening of the IMO building. Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19
measures in place, the catering function remained closed for a significant part of 2020, with minimal
hosting of external events during the year and reduced catering income. This resulted in substantially
lower sales than originally planned and budgeted for 2020.

71 Support cost income earned is based directly on delivery of project and Trading Fund work,
and consequently as delivery rates fell as a result of the pandemic, so too did support cost income,
which achieved only £1.1m, or 78% of budgeted levels. The Organization’s other income represents
investment income, cost recovery from other Organizations and rental income — these various sources
contributed £0.7m in revenue, 29% higher than budgeted, primarily as a result of additional sub-lease
income.

72 Considering now the budget performance from an expenditure perspective, the actual
expenditure for each Fund against the final 2020 budget in shown in the chart below:

Chart V: Budget expenditure against actual expenditure by Fund (in £000)

36,341
33,949
Budget 2020 # Actual 2020

7,974

4,807 5,567
262041, 1,175 1,006 2,428
Regular Budget Trading Fund Headquarters Capital Termination Benefit Fund Technical Cooperation
Fund Fund
73 The expenditure for 2020, as shown in Statement V(a) was £43.3m, £10.4m below the

approved budget amount. Recognizing the impact that the pandemic would have on both the
Organization’s work programme for 2020 and the financial challenges facing all Member States, the
Secretariat has paid particular emphasis on cost containment during the year. Cost management has
included a prudent approach to recruitment, reviews of the requirement for temporary staff, and
reallocation of resources to meet new needs wherever possible. As a matter of principle, discretionary
expenditure has been kept to a minimum during 2020, in addition to areas such as mission travel where
cost savings have arisen naturally as a result of the impact of the pandemic. The key highlights are set
out in the following paragraphs.
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74 For the regular budget, the expenditure profile across the main cost categories is shown in the
chart below.

Chart VI: 2020 regular budget variance analysis to budget
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75 The key areas where the work programme has been restricted, with their budgetary impact, are
summarized out below:

. Significant revision to the meetings programme — from March 2020 onwards the
meetings programme has been seriously affected by the pandemic. The revised meeting
programme for 2020 differed significantly from that on which the budget was based.
Suspension of the meetings programme resulted in some cost savings, while there have been
additional costs associated with trialling and introducing virtual meeting technology — costs for
the KUDO system used to support virtual meetings during 2020 totalled approximately $85k.
Overall, savings of £340k were made in the direct cost of meetings for 2020;

. Postponement of parts of the IMO Member State Audit Scheme (IMSAS) — the
Council endorsed the revised overall audit schedule, with the effect inter alia of postponing the
audits scheduled for 2020 to 2021. The audit work for 2020 concentrated on audit follow-up for
audits conducted in 2016 and 2017. Document-based audits commenced and draft audit
follow-up reports (DAFRS) represented a key areas of focus for the year. The direct costs to
the regular budget of IMSAS relate primarily to mission travel, and the postponement has been
a major contributor to the expected saving on mission travel costs;

. Safety, wellbeing and changes in working methods of IMO staff and delegates
during the COVID-19 pandemic — the Secretariat, led by the Administrative Division and
coordinated by the Senior Management Committee and a Crisis Operations Group worked on
the direct health and safety and productivity challenges produced by the pandemic. This saw a
smooth transition to a remote working modality for all Secretariat staff when the building was
closed in March 2020, which allowed the Secretariat to continue working efficiently and
effectively throughout the year. Later, the planning work shifted to development and
implementation of plans to reopen the building in a safe, phased and cautious manner
consistent with World Health Organization guidance and that provided by the host country, and
has also been concerned with the wellbeing of staff working remotely under challenging
conditions. This work carried some direct costs, most notably in preparation of the signage and
other building adjustments necessary to make the Headquarters a COVID-safe environment;
costs of initial deep-cleaning of the building; additional IT costs to efficiently move the
Secretariat to a remote-working environment; and specific costs related to medical services
and protective equipment. To date, these costs total approximately £60,000, and these were
absorbed within the existing budget through careful cost management and reprioritization and
were offset in part with a reduction of costs negotiated with facilities management suppliers
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while the building was closed. There have been further additional costs, for example those
associated with a weekly deep clean of the building which has been introduced since it
reopened, but these have been offset through careful contract management with suppliers,
focusing efforts on key areas.

76 The impact of the pandemic on the Trading Fund is reflected by the under-utilisation of £3.1m
(40%) during 2020. For publishing activities this was attributable to lower levels of production and
promotional activities in the first half of the year, to the postponement of major projects planned for 2020,
and to careful cost management. For the catering function, the reduction in events and closure of the
building directly led to a reduction in the costs of the catering function during the lockdown.

77 Expenditure funded by the Headquarters Capital Fund (HQCF) was also directly impacted by
the pandemic, particularly with the postponement of planned works for the refresh of the Audio-Visual
equipment in the Main Hall of the Headquarters building. This work remains essential, however the
practical challenges in letting such a significant contract during the pandemic, coupled with a
reassessment of the technology requirements to provide the facility to support hybrid or remote meetings
in a seamless manner, have resulted in the work being delayed to 2021. At the same time a number of
urgent pandemic-related investments were required during 2020 to make adaptations to the building to
make infrastructure changes to support remote working, and to ensure appropriate health and safety
could be maintained where the building is used, with a cost in the region of £107k. In aggregate, these
factors contributed to an under-utilization of £1.5m (57%) on the HQCF, with most of the postponed
investment expected to take place during 2021.

78 The Termination Benefit Fund (TBF) under-utilisation of £169k (14%) reflects the fact that there
were fewer separations during 2020 than had been expected. Forecasting separations will continue to
be a challenging exercise, with some compensating effects between the staff cost budget line in the
regular budget and the separation and repatriation costs budgeted for under the TBF

79 The final budget for technical cooperation (TC) activities financed from the Technical
Cooperation Fund comprised the originally approved appropriation for 2020 of £5,206,000 and the
budget brought forward from 2019 of £361,020 to finance some postponed activities. With the
suspension of delivery of parts of the Integrated Technical Cooperation Programme (ITCP), TC Fund
expenditure for 2020 amounted to £2,428,309 or under-utilization of £3.1m (56%) from the budget. With
the challenges associated with international travel, some components of the ITCP have been suspended
since March 2020 while others, including funding of fellowships for students at the World Maritime
University and the IMO International Maritime Law Institute, have continued.

80 The results of these cost containment measures across all Funds provides a degree of financial
security against the uncertain situation for 2021, with the additional costs necessary to support a more
intensive and technology-dependent meeting programme in particular in mind. To this end, the IMO
Council approved in principle the use of Financial Regulation 4.5 allowing the Secretary-General to
transfer any uncommitted funds from the first year to the second year of the biennium, noting that any
such transfer would be reported to the Council in due course. A continued focus on prudent budget
management during 2021 will allow any remaining amounts to be used to reduce the assessment
funding necessary to support the 2022-2023 work programme.
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

INTERMATIONAL
B BAAR ITIRALC
DRGAMNIZATION

28 Februarny 2021

Dir. Agung Firman Sampurna,

Chairman

Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia
Il. Gatot Subroto 31, Jakarta 10210
Indonesia

Letter of Transmittal
Diear Dir, Sampurna,

Pursuant to the financial regulation 11.2, we have the honour to submit the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of the Internaticnal Maritime Organization, certified and approved in
acoordance with fimandal regulation 11.1, along with the Statement on Internal Control for the finandal
period 2020, which does not form a part of the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries with other
officials of the Organization, the following representations in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of the Internaticnal Maritime Organization for the year ended 31 December 2020,

We are responsible for preparing financial statements that properly present the activities of the
Organization, and for making accurate representations to you. All accounting records and related
information have been made available for the purposed of your audit, and all of transactions that eocumed
im the fimnancial pericd have been, properly reflected in the financial statements and recorded by the
Organization in the acoounting and other records.

1 The financial statements have been prepared and presented in acocordance with:
a. the Imternational Public Sector Accounting Standards;
b. the Financial Regulations and Financial Rules of the Organization; and
c. the accounting policies of the Organization, as summarized in note 1 to the financial
statements.

2 The accounting policies used by the Organization as stated inthe financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous year.

3 Within the meaning of IF3AS 35, IMO also controls Wil and IMLI for financial reporting purposes,
the financial records of which are presented in the consolidated financial statements.

4 The value of cazh, cash equivalents and investments recorded is not impaired and, in our opinion,

is fairly stated.
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All material account receivables have been induded in financial statements and represent valid
claims against debtors. Apart from the estimated uncollectable contributions receivable as

presented in note 2.2, we expect all significant accounts receivables at 31 December 2020 to be
colected.

The inventories, property, plant and equipment, and the intangible assets disclosed in notes 2.3,

2.7 and 2.8 to the financdal statements, respectively, are owned by the Organization and are free
from any charge.

All known accounts payable and acoruals have been induded in the financial statements.

The commitments of the Organization for the acquisition of goods and services, as well as the capital
commitments contracted but not delivered as at 31 December 2020, have been disclosed in note
2.9 and note 7.1 to the financial statements. Commitments for future expensses have not been
recognized as liabilities.

All kEnown legal or contingsnt liabilities as at 31 December 2020 have been disclosed in note 7.2 to
the financial statements.

All expenses reported during the period were incurred in accordance with the financial regulations
and financial rules of the Organization and any specific donor requirements.

All lozsses of cash or receivables, ex gratia payments, frauds and presumptive frauds, wherever
incurred, were communicated to the External Auditors and reported in note 8.

Disclosure was made, im the financial statements, of all matters necessary to enable them to
pressnt fairly the results of transactions during the period.

There have b=en no events since the IMO reporting date of 31 December 2020 that necessitate
revision of the information presented in the financial statements thersto.

(

Arsenio Dominguez
Director, Administrative Division

o

Kitack Lim
Secretary-General

28 February 2021
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Scope of responsibility

1. As Secretary-General and Director of Administration Division of the International Maritime
Organization (IMO), we are accountable, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned in Article X
of the Financial Regulations, for establishing financial rules and procedures to ensure effective
financial administration and the exercise of economy, and for maintaining internal financial control.

Purpose of the system of internal control

2. The system of internal control is designed to reduce and manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve the Organization's policies, aims and objectives. Therefore, it can only provide a
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. It is based on an ongoing process designed
to identify the principal risks, to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. Internal control is a process effected by the Council, the
Secretary-General, senior management and other members of the Secretariat, and designed to
provide reasonable assurance on the achievement of the following internal control objectives:

+ the regularity of the receipt, custody, and disposal of all funds and other financial resources of the
Organization;

« the conformity of obligations and expenditures with the appropriations or other financial
provision voted by the Assembly, or with the purposes and rules relating to trust and other special
funds; and

* the economic use of the resources of the Organization.

3. Thus, on an operational level, IMO's internal control system is not solely a policy or procedure that is
performed at certain points in time, but rather continually operated at all levels within the
Organization through internal control processes to ensure the above objectives.

4. The current statement on IMO's intermal control processes, as described above, applies for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and is up to the date of the approval of the Organization's 2020 financial
statements.

Risk management and internal control

5. The Organization operates a Risk Management Framework, developed and approved by the Council,
and is required to have an annual risk assessment exercise to identify and analyse risks to the delivery
of those aspects of the Strategic Plan and High-level Action Plan which are the responsibility of the
Secretariat, and to develop and implement mitigation plans where those risks are considered to be
unacceptably high. While there is an annual exercise of risk assessment and evaluation, the
application of the principles of risk management and the mitigation of risk to the extent practically
possible is an ongoing process. The outcome of both the annual risk review exercise and the ongoing
monitoring of risk inform the assessments of the effectiveness of the established system of internal
control.
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Review of effectiveness

6. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is also informed by:

7. For

senior managers, each of whom has a role to play in the system of internal control and has been
assigned specific delegations within the framework provided by the Financial Regulations and
Financial Rules, Procurement Manual and Budget Manual. Each staff member assigned such
delegated responsibility has provided me with an individual attestation on internal control for the
year ended 31 December 2020 which acknowledges the scope of their responsibility, reports any
significant weaknesses identified in internal controls along with steps being taken to address
them, and confirms that internal controls are operating effectively within their area of
responsibility;

the work of the Internal Oversight and Ethics Office (IOEO), which has a dual function, both as
internal oversight to provide me with reports on internal audits conducted during the year to
provide independent and objective information on the adeguacy and effectiveness of the
Organization's system of internal controls, and as the ethics office to provide confidential advice
and counsel to the Organization and its staff on ethics and standards of conduct, promote ethical
awareness and responsible behaviour and handle referrals of allegations of unethical behaviour
or conflicts of interest;

the External Auditor, the Chairman of the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia, who provides
me with a management letter identifying any issues of control identified during the course of their
annual audit and provides the Council and Assembly with an opinion on the accuracy of the
Organization's financial statements; and

the Council and, specifically, its Council Working Group on Risk Management, which reviews the
outcomes of the annual risk assessment exercise and identifies any action which it believes is

necessary to address the findings thereof.

the year 2020, there have been no significant issues to report in the operation of internal controls.

Conclusion

B. Effective intermal control, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the
possibility of circumvention and therefore can only provide reasonable assurance. Furthermore,
because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time. In
recognizing this, however, concludes that, to the best of our knowledge and information, the IMO
Secretariat generally had an effective system of internal control for the year ended
31 December 2020, and up to the date of the approval of the financial statements for that year.

C

Arsenio Dominguez
Director, Administrative Division

o

Kitack Lim
Secretary-General

28 February 2021
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REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR: OPINION
ON THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
\ \:

&s -

CHAIRMAN
AUDIT BOARD
REPUBLIC OF INDONESIA

Letier from the External Auditor to the Chairman of the Council
of the International Maritime Organization

Num.: 70 /S/1/05/2021

I'he Chairman of the Council
International Maritime Organization

4. Albert Embankment London SE| 7SR
United Kingdom

Dear Chairman,

In accordance with Article XII of the Organization Financial Regulations and Financial Rules, | have the
honour to present our Report to the Council of the International Maritime Organization for onward
transmission 1o the Assembly. This report comprises the External Auditor Opinion and Long-Form Repon
and the Audited Financial Statements of the International Maritime Organization for the year ended 31

December 2020

Dr. Agung Firman Sampurna, CSFA, CFrA, CGCAL 7
Chairman of the Audit Board of the Republic of lndonesia
External Auditor

Jakarta, Indonesia
21 May 2021

Audit Report on the International Maritime Organization ]|
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THE AUDIT BOARD OF THE REPUBLIC OF INDONESIA

AUDIT OPINION

CERTIFICATE OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
AS AT AND FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

To the Council of the International Maritime Organization

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the International Maritime Organization (the Organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020; and the statement of
financial performance, the statement of changes in net assets, the statement of cash flows, and the

statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended: and notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and financial performance and cash flows for the vear ended
of the Organization in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Organization. in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IPSAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o
error.

In preparing the financial statements. Management is responsible for assessing the Orgamization's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and vsing the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council as Those Charged with Governance is responsible for overseeing the Organization’s
financial reporting process,

Audit Report on the International Maritime Organization 2|Pu /
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report thereon

I'he Organization is responsible for the other information. which comprises the financial report for the
vear ended 31 December 2020, contained below, but does not include the tinancial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read other information
and, in doing so. consider whether this other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. on
the basis of the work that we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in such
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, in our opinion, the transactions of the Organization that have come to our notice or which we
have tested as part of our audit have, in all significant respects, been in accordance with the
Organization's Financial Regulations and Financial Rules.

In accordance with Article X1 of the Financial Regulations and Financial Rules, we have also issued a
long-form report on our audit of the Organization,

Dr. Agus Joko Pramono, M.Ace, CA, CPA ,
Vice Chairman of the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia
External Auditor

Jakarta, Indonesia
21 May 2021
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT I

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2020

Consolidated

2020

2019

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.1 81,156,566 73,781,067 99,578,137 92,030,732
Contributions receivable 2.2 789,049 744,165 798,745 757,283
Inventories 2.3 474,945 1,061,365 519,659 1,089,927
Advances to sub-contractors 2.4 617,261 890,503 617,261 890,503
Other receivables — exchange transactions 2.5 2,363,641 2,312,288 3,206,915 3,263,590
Other receivables — non-exchange transactions 2.5 - i 480,476 13,467
Total current assets 85,401,462 78,789,388 105,201,193 98,045,502
Non-current assets

Investment in bonds 2.6 - i 2,175,153 2,136,706
Property, plant and equipment 2.7 1,239,061 1,589,978 1,472,881 1,808,921
Intangible assets 2.8 8,998 112,201 102,444 216,317
Total non-current assets 1,248,059 1,702,179 3,750,478 4,161,944
TOTAL ASSETS 86,649,521 80,491,567 108,951,671 102,207,446
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables and accruals — exchange transactions 2.9 2,556,999 3,144,423 2,885,315 3,573,103
Payables and accruals — non-exchange 2.9 5635179 6,346,550 10,840,650 12,672,758
transactions

Provmohs for warranties — exchange 510 53,813 82,852 53,813 82,852
transactions

Employee benefits 2.11 234,508 297,278 280,074 325,508
Finance lease liabilities 2.12 101,825 151,713 101,825 151,713
Total current liabilities 8,582,324 10,022,816 14,161,677 16,805,934
Non-current liabilities

Employee benefits 2.11 51,060,884 48,819,639 52,580,486 50,027,342
Finance lease liabilities 2.12 i 101,825 - 101,825
Total non-current liabilities 51,060,884 48,921,464 52,580,486 50,129,167
TOTAL LIABILITIES 59,643,208 58,944,280 66,742,163 66,935,101
NET ASSETS 27,006,313 21,547,287 42,209,508 35,272,345
Fund balances and reserves 2.13 21,547,287 17,702,170 35,811,439 29,477,447
Surplus for the year 5,459,026 3,845,117 6,398,069 5,794,898

TOTAL FUND BALANCES AND RESERVES

27,006,313

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

21,547,287

42,209,508

35,272,345
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT II
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 December 2020

(GBP)
Consolidated
Note 2020 2020 2019

REVENUE

Assessed contributions 3.1 33,391,000 33,242,000 33,391,000 33,242,000
Donor voluntary contributions 3.2 12,230,298 11,441,314 18,713,979 17,995,354
Commercial activities 3.3 10,198,148 15,125,571 11,572,535 16,587,439
Fellowships 3.4 - - 5,828,086 5,777,277
Other revenue 3.5 367,818 692,819 587,736 1,427,506
TOTAL REVENUE 56,187,264 60,501,704 70,093,336 75,029,576
EXPENSES

Staff and other personnel costs 4.1 36,797,077 36,279,639 45,409,644 44,547,483
Travel expenses 4.2 349,878 2,369,562 564,264 3,190,223
Supplies, consumables and other running costs 4.3 6,223,367 5,451,974 7,013,858 6,646,357
Costs related to trading activities 4.4 1,009,217 2,019,389 1,013,974 2,029,765
Outsourced services 4.5 1,615,515 2,620,126 2,031,729 2,969,355
Training and development 4.6 1,898,279 4,697,008 2,532,867 6,629,017
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 4.7 1,139,996 1,030,083 1,350,358 1,181,505
Return of unspent funds 4.8 257,778 291,757 257,778 291,757
Other expenses 4.9 487,857 866,979 655,310 1,068,352
TOTAL EXPENSES 49,778,964 55,626,517 60,829,782 68,553,814

OPERATING SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 6,408,300 4,875,187 9,263,554 6,475,762

Currency exchange loss 4.10 (949,274)  (1,030,070) (2,865,485) (680,864)
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 5,459,026 3,845,117 6,398,069 5,794,898

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT Il

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 December 2020
(GBP)

Accumulated Surpluses/Fund Balances

IMO Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Opening balance 1 January 21,547,287 18,989,088 35,272,345 31,649,352
Surplus for the year 6.2 5,459,026 3,845,117 6,398,069 5,794,898
Other movements on reserves

Transfers 2.13 - - (697,681) -
Actuarial loss for the year 2.11 - (1,286,918) - (1,286,918)
Exchange rate effect 10 - - 1,236,775 (884,987)
Total movement for the year 5,459,026 2,558,199 6,937,163 3,622,993

TOTAL NET ASSETS 27,006,313 21,547,287 42,209,508 35,272,345

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT IV STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 December 2020
(GBP)

Consolidated

2020

Cash flow from operating activities:

Surplus for the period* 5,120,795 4,562,515 7,894,262 5,780,392
Interest earned 3.5 288,619 652,871 415,905 987,241
(Increase)/decrease in contributions receivable 2.2 (44,884) (310,939) (41,462) (312,742)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 2.3 586,420 (3,521) 570,268 (40)
(Increase)/decrease in advances to sub-contractors 2.4 273,242 (162,482) 273,242 (162,482)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 2.5 (51,353) (495,381) (410,334) (487,969)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment? 2.7 659,290 615,983 898,600 667,363
Net'(gain)/loss on disposal of Property, Plant and 57 (27,287) i (32,187) 2072
Equipment

Amortization of intangible assets? 2.8 106,601 328,825 163,334 344,889
Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals 2.9 (1,298,795) (949,903) (2,519,896) (2,005,894)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions for warranties 2.10 (29,039) (5,463) (29,039) (5,463)
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits 2.11 2,178,475 3,543,715 2,507,710 3,657,093
Net cash flows from operating activities 7,762,084 7,776,220 9,690,403 8,464,460
Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in term deposit and bonds 2.6 - - (38,447) 40,351
Purchases of property, plant and equipment? 2.7 (308,373) (555,008) (566,648) (580,369)
Purchases of intangible assets? 2.8 (3,398) (8,000) (49,461) (128,180)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.7 27,287 - 36,275 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (284,484) (563,008) (618,281) (668,198)
Cash flows from financing activities:

(Decrease) in finance lease liabilities 2.12 (151,713) (145,821) (151,713) (145,821)
Net cash flows from financing activities (151,713) (145,821) (151,713) (145,821)
Other movements in net assets 2.13 - (1,286,918) (697,681) (1,286,918)
Gain/(loss) on exchange on consolidation 2.13 - - 1,236,775 (884,987)
Effe.ct of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 410 49612  (1,370,269) (1,912,098) (972,735)
equivalents

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,375,499 4,410,204 7,547,405 4,505,801

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year : 73,781,067 69,370,863 92,030,732 87,524,931
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year . 81,156,566 73,781,067 99,578,137 92,030,732

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

1IMO - surplus of £5,459,026 (2019: surplus of 3,845,117), less interest earned of £288,619 (2019: £652,871), and less gain on exchange of cash and cash
equivalents of £49,612 (2019: loss of £1,370,269); and Consolidated Group —surplus of £6,398,069 (2019: surplus of £5,794,898), less interest earned of
£415,905 (2019: £987,241), and plus loss on exchange of cash and cash equivalents of £1,912,098 (2019: loss of £972,735).

2 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortization of intangible assets, purchases of property, plant and equipment and purchases of

intangible assets include the effect of the exchange rate adjustment for exchange rate movements in the year. Notes 2.7 and 2.8 show additions and
foreign exchange adjustments separately rather than in aggregate.
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT V(a)
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS-IMO
for the year ended 31 December 2020

(GBP)
el
Original Original Final Final
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Receipts!

Assessed contributions 33,391,000 33,242,000 33,391,000 33,242,000 33,141,500 33,381,166  (249,500) 139,166
Support costs income 1,442,000 1,536,000 1,442,000 1536000 1,130,506 1658846  (311,494) 122,846
Trading income 14,056,000 12,048,000 14,056,000 12,048,000 9,423,154 14416016  (4,632,846) 2,368,016
Other income 518,000 156,000 518,000 156,000 668,940 367,036 150,940 211,036
Funds Transfer® 2,416,000 910,000 2416000 1,410,000  2,416000 1,410,000 - -
Total receipts 51,823,000 47,892,000 51,823,000 48,392,000 46,780,100 51,233,064  (5042,900) 2,841,064
Payments!

Regular budget strategic results 36,214,000 35,429,000 36,340,597 35,515,101 33,949,417 33,266,781 2,391,180 2,248,320
Trading 7905000 6,729,000  7,974139 6,729,000 4,806,659 6,042,955 3,167,480 686,045
Headquarters capital 2,355,000 1,167,000 2,620,225 1,479,061 1,114,277 1,156,379 1,505,948 322,682
Termination/separation 1,175,000 859,000  1,175000 1,359,000 1,006,137 1,154,601 168,863 204,399
Training and development* - 115,000 - 115,000 - 101,134 - 13,866
Ijizr)”ca' cooperation (TC 5206000 4,850,000  5567,020  5052,301 2428309 4,229,408 3,138,711 822,893
Total payments 52,855,000 49,149,000 53,676,981 50,249,463 43,304,799 45951,258 10,372,182 4,298,205

(1,032,000) (1,257,000) (1,853,981) (1,857,463) 3,475,301 5,281,806 5,329,282 7,139,269

1 Classification of receipts or payments follows the same basis as the approved budget and is different from the classification shown in
Statement Il which presents it by nature/function.

2 Budget amounts are the modified accrual basis (IMO) and the accrual basis (WMU & IMLI) as approved by the respective governing bodies
(IMO, WMU and IMLI) and the actual amounts are on the same basis as the budget amounts.

3 The Final Budget for 2020 includes additional budget transfers for commitments made in prior years discharged in 2020 totalling £821,981
as detailed in Note 7.1.

4 The Training and Development Fund was closed effective 1 January 2020 in line with Assembly Resolution A.1132(31). Training and
development budgets and expenditure now form a part of the regular budget strategic results.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MARITIME ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT V(b)
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS Consolidated
for the year ended 31 December 2020

(GBP)
e =
Original Original Final Final
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Receipts?
Assessed contributions 33,391,000 33,242,000 33,391,000 33,242,000 33,141,500 33,381,166 (249,500) 139,166
Support costs income 1,442,000 1,536,000 1,442,000 1,536,000 1,130,506 1,658,846 (311,494) 122,846
Trading income 14,056,000 12,048,000 14,056,000 12,048,000 9,423,154 14,416,016 (4,632,846) 2,368,016
Other income 518,000 156,000 518,000 156,000 668,940 367,036 150,940 211,036
Funds Transfer3 2,416,000 910,000 2,416,000 1,410,000 2,416,000 1,410,000 - -
IMO Subtotal 51,823,000 47,892,000 51,823,000 48,392,000 46,780,100 51,233,064  (5,042,900) 2,841,064
WMU 12,906,500 12,754,600 13,369,100 13,297,300 11,679,600 12,516,700  (1,689,500) (780,600)
IMLI 2,010,652 1,673,474 2,010,652 1,673,474 1,891,217 1,945,677 (119,435) 272,203

Subtotal Education and research 14,917,152 14,428,074 15,379,752 14,970,774 13,570,817 14,462,377 (1,808,935) (508,397)

Overall total receipts 66,740,152 62,320,074 67,202,752 63,362,774 60,350,917 65,695,441 (6,851,835) 2,332,667
Payments?
Regular budget strategic results 36,214,000 35,429,000 36,340,597 35,515,101 33,949,417 33,266,781 2,391,180 2,248,320
Trading 7,905,000 6,729,000 7,974,139 6,729,000 4,806,659 6,042,955 3,167,480 686,045
Headquarters capital 2,355,000 1,167,000 2,620,225 1,479,061 1,114,277 1,156,379 1,505,948 322,682
Termination/separation 1,175,000 859,000 1,175,000 1,359,000 1,006,137 1,154,601 168,863 204,399
Training and development* - 115,000 - 115,000 - 101,134 - 13,866
Technical cooperation (TC Fund) 5,206,000 4,850,000 5,567,020 5,052,301 2,428,309 4,229,408 3,138,711 822,893
IMO Subtotal 52,855,000 49,149,000 53,676,981 50,249,463 43,304,799 45,951,258 10,372,182 4,298,205
wmMmu 12,499,100 12,352,000 13,086,800 12,527,100 10,533,700 11,571,200 2,553,100 955,900
IMLI 1,945,144 1,648,343 1,945,144 1,648,343 1,687,262 1,644,086 257,882 4,257
Subtotal Education and research 14,444,244 14,000,343 15,031,944 14,175,443 12,220,962 13,215,286 2,810,982 960,157
Overall total payments 67,299,244 63,149,343 68,708,925 64,424906 55,525,761 59,166,544 13,183,164 5,258,362

(559,092) (829,269)  (1,506,173) (1,062,132) 4,825,156 6,528,897 6,331,329 7,591,029

1 Classification of receipts or payments follows the same basis as the approved budget and is different from the classification shown in
Statement Il which presents it by nature/function.

2 Budget amounts are the modified accrual basis (IMO) and the accrual basis (WMU & IMLI) as approved by the respective governing bodies
(IMO, WMU and IMLI) and the actual amounts are on the same basis as the budget amounts.

3 Final Budget for 2020 includes additional budget transfers for commitments made in prior years discharged in 2020 totalling £821,981 as
detailed in Note 7.1.

4 The Training and Development Fund was closed effective 1 January 2020 in line with Assembly Resolution A.1132(31). Training and
development budgets and expenditure now form a part of the regular budget strategic results.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

MoTe 1: AccounTiig PoLICIES

Basis of Preparation

1 The finzncial statements of the International kMaritime Orzanization {IMO] have been prepared on the
accrugl basiz of accounting in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) using
the historic cost convention. The appropriate Intemational Financial Reporting 5tandard (IFRS) has been applied
whers an IPSAS does not address 3 particular issue. Mo Standards have been adopted prior to their required
implemeantation date, and no transitonal provisions are in operation.

2 The Cash Flow statement is prepared vsing the indirect method.

3 Within the meaning of IPSAS 35 - "Consolidated Financial Statements" the Crganization is 3 controlling
entity with two controlled entitiss, the world Maritime University [WhiU] and the IMO International Maritime Law
Institute [IMLI) based in Sweden and Mala, respectively. Neither WinU nor IMLI has equity and the Organization's
contral is not by means of shareholding: however, their Charter and Statute, respectively, provide for the “power’
and 'benefit’ criteria neceszary for establishing control under IP5AS 35, the key factorsbeins:

#  the s=cretary-Gensral's ability to eppoint key 3131, both management and academic, and also o
Eppoint the respective governing boards;

#  the zlignment of the objectives of Wkl and IMLI with the goals of IMO through the Charter and
the stetuis, respectively;

#  the requirement for changes to the Charter and statute to be approved by IMO crgens; and

#  |nthe event of dissolution of IMLI, the funds and zssets remaining shall be used as directed by
WS Council.

4 Conzolidated statements have therefore besn preparsd and are shown slongside those of IMO alone for
eaze of refersnce.

5 The functional and reporting currency of IMO is GEP. Transactions in currencies other than GEP are
converted into GBP at the prevailing United MWations Operationzl Rates of Exchange [UNORE] at the time of
tranzaction. hMonetary assets and liabilities held &t the yesr-end in currencies other than GEF are converted into
ZEF &t the preveiling UNORE year-end closing rate. Resulting gzins or losses are sccounted for in the Statement
of Financial performance.

& The outbresk of the COWVID-1% pandemic and the measures adopted by the host governmment and
governments worldwide to mitigate the pandemic’s spread has had an impact on the Organization’s ability to carmy
out technical aspects of its work; the most notakle is around the restriction on travel. However, the Organization
nas the edeguate resources to continue its coerations on 8 EDINg concern basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

7 Cazh and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash &t banks, and highly liguid short-term deposits
with meturities of twelve months or less.

a The effective date of IP5AS 41 on Financial Instrurments was deferred by one year to 1 January 2023 due
to the Covid-12 pandemic and the challenges it has crested.
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Contributions and Receivables

= Asseszed imcome on Member 5tates is recognized 35 revenue when it falls due, normslly on L January of
the financizl year for which the assessment iz made.

10 Contributions are recognized as an asz=t when confirmed in writing by donors, with revenue normally
o=ing recognized &t the same point. However, in some cases a donor agreement may contzin sufficiently strict
conditions gver the application of funds to a specific activity that a liability is recognized along with the asset when
the agreement iz confirmed in writing and revenue is only recognized a5 the activity iz delivered. The sccounting
treatment of donor contributions is determined on & case-by-case basis following the provisions of IPSAS 23 -
'"Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions".

11 Ewsn in the sbsence of conditions 35 defined in IP5&5 23, contributions from donors are typically received
with restrictions ower their use and are not availzble for the Organization's use entirely 3t its own discretion.
Bzlences of reserves by fund zre disclosed in Mote 2.13, with 3ll balances held under Bilateral Opsrations and
Multi-Conor Trust Funds {MOTF] b=ing subject to restrictions imposed sither through the terms of the bilateral
agresment or the Terms of Reference of the BMOTF, respectively, and such reserves may only be used in ecoordance
with thess restrictions.

12 Receivebles are stated &t nominzl wvalue lesz sllowsnce for estimated irrecoverable amounts and
discounted, where appropriate, if cash flows are not expected within 12 manths of the reporting date.

13 Im-kind comtributions of goods ars valued 3t fair market value and ars recognized as revenue =nd as
assets when received. In-kind contributions of services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Revenue

14 The Orzanization's commercizl sales operations, conducted through the Trading Fund, subletting of
conference facilities, and the fees charged to those submitting products and substances for technical assessment
in arder for the Grganization to fully recover costs associsted with conducting those assessments, are considered
to be exchange transactions and are accounted for within the meaning of IPSAS 9 —"Revenue from Exchange
Transactions". All other revenue is on 3 non-sxchangs basis and is sccounted for in accordance with IPSAS 23,

15 Revenue from the sale of publications is recognized upon shipment to the customer. Interest on

investrnent of funds on fixed short-t2rmn deposit and other revenus are recognized when recsfved or =arned in
accordances with IPSAS 5.

Inventories

15 Publications held for szle on hand at the end of the financial period are recorded as inventorizs 2nd are
velued st the lower of cost or net realizable value.

17 The cost of publications includes purchase cost, transportation and delivery costs, determined on a
weighted sverags basis. Inventory guantities are valideted by physical stock counts.

18 Publications are shown 25 2 cost of zales 3t the time at which the szle is recognized, and the inventony is
reviewed st the end of each financial vear for obsolescence. Obsolete books are held at mil value until their

dispossl.

13 Slow-maoving titles, with an excess of three years’ stock on hend, are conzidersd to I:le|irn|::aire-:l, with a
50% reduction in value.
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20 The Orgznization does not hold any specific mem of inventory for the purpose of distributing free of
charge. While & small number of copies of varous pukblications are distributed 'free of charge' from time to time
under specific conditions, these free copies constitute an insignificant percentage (typically less than 5% of the
total books distributed. Consequently, no provizion is made in this regard.

Property, Plant and Equipment

21 Property, Flant and Eguipment [PPEE] are steted at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Depreciation s provided for PREE over their estimated ussful lifz using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful Iife for PPAE claszzes s as follows:

Class Estimated useful life [years)

Communication and IT equipment I-5

viehicles 4—7

Furniture B fixturss 5

Confersnce equiprment 7

hizcellaneous 5
22 Leasehald improvernents are recognized 2= 2ssets and valued 3t cost and deprecizted over the lesser of
thie rernaining ussful life of the improvements or the lease term.
23 While the Organization uses an operational threshold for recognizing property, plant and equipment of

£500, thizs threshold is not applied ta library collections. where a library collection is deemed to be in excess
10% reference in naturs, all purchases of reference material are capitalized and deprecizted over three years on
a straight-line basis. Whers & library collection holds less than 10% reference books, all items will oe expensed s
purchased.

24 Impairment reviews are undertaken for all assets 3t leastannually.

Intangible Assets

23 Intangiole assets are steted at historical cost less sccumulated amortization and eny impairment losses.
25 Publication titles are not considersd to be intangible zssets as they do not meet the provisions of

IPSAS 31 - Intangible Asssts’. Conseguently, development costs for new titles ars expensed a: they arsincurred.

7 Amortization is provided over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The estimated
uzsful life for intangible asset classes is 35 follows:

Class Estimated useful kfe [years)
Eoftware acquired externally 3
Internzlly developed software 3-8

Leases

Fimance Leases

el Leagzes under which substantially all of the risk and reward of ownership have been transferred to the
arganization through the leass agreement are treated a5 finance lessss.

pri=] Aszsets purchzssed under a finance |ease are shown as 2ssets &t the lower of the fair value of the zs=st
and the pressnt value of the minimum lease payments. An associsted lease obligation is recognized &t the same
vElue.
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30 Lease payments made under 3 finance lza:2 are apportionsd between payment of finance chargss and
reduction of the balance of the hability.

3l Azzets acguired throush 2 finance lease are deprecizted over the shorter of the [23:= term or the uzsful

ife of the azzet, except where such zsssts become the property of the Grgenization on completion of the lease
term. In such casses, the 3sset is depreciated over its useful life. The finance charze will be caloulzted =0 as 1o
producs & constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Leases

32 Leazas which are not categorized as finence leases, with 2 belance of risk and rewsrd remaining with the
gzz0r, &re considered to be opersting legsss.

33 Expenditure incurred under an operzting lease iz charged on a straight-line basis gwer the life of the

=Eh

Employee Benefits Liabilities
34 MO recosnizes the following categories of employes benefits:

&  short-term employee bensfits due to be settled within 12 months of the end of the accounting
pericd in which employees render the related service;

*  post-employment benefits;

& other long-term employes bensfits; and

# termination bensfits.

35 actuzrial gzins and losses which may arize from experience adjustments and changes in actuarizl
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they ocour 35 3 separete tem directly in net ass215/2quity. Past
s=rvice costs from amendments to the benefits provided by the plans are recognized in surplus or deficit over the
average remaining service lives of the related employess if they are not vested, and immediatzly when they arize
if the benefitz are zlready vested. Mone of the bensfitzs of the Crgenization's defined benefits plans have been
amended during the reporting period.

35 Short-term employes benefis indude s3laries and related bensfits, settling in bensfis, educstion grant
and others such as home leave, paid annuel lzave and sick leave.

3r Post-employment benefits are defined bensfit plans consisting of United Mations loint Staff Pension
Fund {UMIERF], after-Service Health Insurance Plan [ASHI) and repatristion grant and relsted bensfits.

38 Cther long-term employss bensfits include acorusd unused annuzl leave and, where zpplicabls,
comp=nsation payments in the case of death, injury or illness attributable to performancs of duties.

=] Termination benefits indude indemnities for dismizsal before retirement or voluntary redundancy.
where, st the reporting date, there is & formal plan, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to finish the
employrnent of 3 staff member and at that date the staff member has not yet separated from the Crganization,
an ccrual is recognized in the financizl statements.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

40 Provisions are made for future lizbiliti=z and charges wherz IMO has & present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and itis probable that IMO will be required 1o settle the obligation. This liability
iz estimated using 3 percentage based on the previous five yesrs salzs and the level of returns,

41 & high proportion of the Organization's sales of publications are made through distnbutors rather than
directly to the end user. It is the Orgenization's establishied business practice to refund distributors for unsold
copies held by them, which may become cbsolste throush the issuance of a new edition. From 1 January 2021,
any publications purchased will no longer gqualify for returns, with the exception of two copies of key publications
required to be kept in stock under the t=rms of the distributor’s agreement. & provision is established to reflect
an approximation of the funds expected to be reimbursed to distributors fior the copies sold to them during the
financizl year which may be returned during future financial years. This liability iz estimated using & percentage
oazed on the previous five years sales and the level of retums.

42 Cther cormmitments, which do not mest the recognition criteria for lizbilities, are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements 35 contingent liabilities when their exstence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or mon-occurrence of one or more wnoertain future events which are not wholly within the contral of IO,

Fund Accounting and 5egment Reporting

43 The financizl statements are prepared on a3 fund accounting basis, showing, at the end of the period, the
conzolidated position of all IMO funds. & fund is 3 sel~belancing accounting entity established to account for the
tranzactions of 3 specifisd purpose or objective. Fund balances represent the accumulated residus! of revenue
and expenses.

dad IMO classifies all projects, operations and fund activities into four segments: |} Core Programme
Management; ii] Techmical Cooperation and Extra-oudgetary Activities; iil) Trading and Business Actiities; and iv)
Education and Ressarch. IMO reports on the transactions of each segment during the financial period, and the
oalances held at the end of the pericd.

45 Under Core Programme kanagement, the Organization provides ssrvices to support Member States’
decizion making, including the development of treaties, regulstions and policies. These actvities are funded by
assessed contributions and transfers from surpluzss from such comtributions. The Organization's General Fund,
wiorking Capital Fund, Headguarters Capital Fund, Training and Development Fund and Termination Bensfit Fund
are groupsd under this segment.

45 Under Technical Cooperastion and Extra-budgetary activities, the Organization provides Member States
with technical cooperstion and extre-budgstary planning and implementation services. such activitizs are
primarily funded through the surplus of the Organization’s commercial activities and through contributions from
donors or through 3 cost recovery modsl such as the fees charged for assessments of products and substances. In
this context, the Crganization’s Technical Cooperation Fund and all donor trust Funds are grouped under this
zegment.

47 Actrities conducted by Wil and IMLI are cetegorized under the Education and Res=arch s=gment. The
funding is primarily derived from donations to and fees charged by WHIU 2nd IMLI, 3nd paridy through the surplus
of the Organization's commercial activities.

48 As the Organizetion undertakes commercial business activities, in particular, of publishing and catering,

through the Trading Fund, thoss activities are ssgmented under Trading and Business Activities. Funding comes
from the szle of publications and catering.
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Budget Comparison

43 The assembly approves the bienmial budgets of the Organization which include the regular budgst and
the budszeiz of the Trading Fund, the Hesdquarisrs Capital Fund, the Training and Development Fund, the
Terrnination Benefit Fund and the Technical Coopsration Fund. Thess budgsts may be subsequently amendsd by
the Council or throush the esercise of delegated authority. Statement V: Comparison of Budget and Actual
Armounts compares the final bedget to sctual amownts calculated on the same besis as the carresponding
budgetary amounts. Az the beses vsed to prepare the budget and financizl stetements differ, Mote 5 providss 3
reconciliztion between the sctusl amounts pressnted in Ststerment ¥ and the actual amounts presented in
Statement Iv: Cash Flow.
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MoTe 2 AssETs AMD LIABILITIES

MNote 2.1: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Condalidated

2020 2018
Cath and Cash Equivalents zop zop
Bank and Imprast Cash 23 B56 400 15875 B16 I 006,947 11 270,008
Shart-tarm fepodils 58 296 EE1 53,501,915 G0 566, E2E1 60 756,115
Other cash and cash equevalents F 105 3 EDE 4 305 4 5E8

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUINVALENTS Bl 156,566 73,781,067 59,578,137 B2 0&0,7332

50 Cazh required for immediate disbursement is maintained in cash and 43 bank accounts, ssven in British
Pounds, 35 in Us dollar, and sixin Eurps. Bzlances inthe shori-term deposit accounts are available at short notice.

51 The Crganization doss not place long-term investments in bonds or shares, nor does it maks uss of
money marke: facilizies such a5 hedging. Those deposits held at year end are mezsured 3t amortized cost that is
discounted, using the effective interest method. short-term deposits are investments held to migtuerity invested
for a maximum of twelve months with an approved list of counterparties. The Organization's Investrnent Policy.
established in accordance with Article IX of the Financial Regulations, focusss on capital retention rather than
maximization of return on imestment.

52 The Invastment Policy establishes limits onthe maximum amounts and time pericd for deposits with any
counterparty, based on 2 range of factors designed to assess their financizl stability, in order to diversify and
manage investment risk

53 Effective implementztion of the Investment Policy is the responzibility of the IMO Treasury Committes,
comprising of senior programmme and administrative staff, slonzg with an independent sxternal expert financial
advizer. The Committee meets on & regular basis and considers an investmant proposzl, along with information
on the current cash position, cash flow projections and surplus funds svailable %o invest together with the
oroposed counterparties and their credit ratings.

54 The table below shows the breakdown of the valus of IMO's short-term deposit placements, including
accrued interest 35 5t 31 December 2020 by currency of investment and maturity dats:

MO Treadu ry D podsit

b aturity Date Clrrenty T T T ialue in G BP

15 hdarch 2021 UaD 24,714 B0d 18,206,374
15 harch 2021 =EP 10,000,088 10,000 048
14 June 2021 GEP 20,000,279 20,000,279
14 December 3021 GEP 10,000,140 10,000,140

TOTAL SHORT-TERR DEPOSITS 58,256,881

55 IMILI holds short-term deposit of €2,500,000 (20109: €3,350.000], which is equivalent to £2,270,000 as &t
31 December 2020 (2018: £2,854,200].

55 There have besn no impairments of short-term deposits held by IMO and 1ML 25 3t 31 December 2020
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Mote 2.2: Contributions Receivable

Consolidated

200 Fliak ]
S et L - GEP GEP
Sdember Slates giiadsmeniy ED5 791 191 @71 305 793 191 @71
Dansr voluntary contributions %03 356 551,193 402 553 64,410

TOTAL CONTRIEUTIONS RECENABLE

57 Contributions receivable for Member States' aszsssments and donor voluntary contributions are non-
exchange transactions.

Consolidated

2020 2015
MeEmber STabed s om entd due: GEP GEEF
Total Cantributions Racevable bafore allowarcs 1 256 285 1,007 101 1,256 285 1,007 101
Fair walue sdjustrments (=05 42E] (459 154] (505 42E) (459 154]
Mllzwance for doulbtiul acsaunts (355 064 [35%,064) (355 064} [35%,064)
MET CONTRIBUTIONS RECENABLE ] 102 873 ] 102 873
58 The following table illustrates the composition of kMember States’ recenakles.
IMD Cortolidated

2030 GRP 20159 GBP 2030 GEP 2019 GBP
ViEar of adosstimend: Amaunt ¥ Amaunt ' Anmaunt ' Amaunt
2030 425 754 14 425 754 14
2015 113439 19 06455 3D 113 439 9 106455 30
2018 44 E3F 4 a0 564 g 44 532 4 a0, 564 g
2017 and @ar]ies 673 460 53 oo, FR: 7] 673460 53 oo, 7R 71

HOMINAL VALUE OF RECEIVABLE ; 1,007,101 1,007,101

53 Hiztorical experience has shown that assessments dus from Membsr States ars highly likely to be s=ttled
in full st some point in the future, with no write-offs having been authorised in this regard since the inception of
the Organization. However, because thers is significant uncertainty surrounding the timing of future cash flows
from such receivables, an adjustment s required to show these amounts at fair velue.

&0 The movemsnts of the allowance for fair value adjustrnent and doubtful acocounts during 2020 are as
faollows:
Opening Clesin
d e _ | e
01.01.2020 e, 31.12 2020
Fair walue adjustment lor Members Statas' arrears - IMO 450 164 45, 2654 E05 4728
Lair walue sdjustment for Members States' arrears — Condabdated 459 164 4G, 264 505 438
TOTAL ALLOWWAENDE FOR DENUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - IMO 0
TOTAL ALLOWENCE FOR DOUBTEFUL ACCOUNTS - COMSOLDATED 1]
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&1 &5 8t 31 December 2020 there were 2 total of 47 Member States and the former Socizlist Federal
Republic of Yugoslavia [5FRY] with outstanding balance. Of these, 38 had currentyear and prior year balances only.
The remaining & and former SFRY had arrears prior to 2018, For the Member 513tes in arrears and without an
agre=d payment plan, an approzimation is meade bassd on historical experience — for those Member States which
nad arrears extending only to the current year and prior year, no fair value adjusiment is made. For the remaining
Membsr 5tates with arrears for 2008 and =arlier, it was azsumed that the eventual cash flows will be sufficiently
far im the future that the present value of those cash flows after discounting is approximeately zero.

52 The zettlement of the former Socislist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia (5FRY) arrears of £355,054
continuess to depend on the results of ongoing megotistions 2t the United Mations regarding succession issues. The
Gowernments of the successor States of the former SFRY have requested the United Mations to write off all debts
of the former SFRY relasting to their confribwtions to the Umited Wations and its specislized agencies and
programmes. The United Mations had taken the view that, im accordance with the general rules of internztional
aw regarding the succession of States in respect of State debis, the United Wations has the right to seek peyment
of all or part of the pre-dissolution arrears from the five successor 3tates of the former Yugoslzvia. Despite requests
for the debf to be writhen off, the United Mations has refused 1o do so. The precize amount owing by 2ach of SFRY's
fiwe successor States has not yet been detsrmined by the United Nations. Undil this issus iz settled by the United
Mations, the Secretaniat is notin & position to pursue the recovery of the outstanding amount, and the Secretanat's
policy in this regard is consistent with prior years and the spproach taken by the United Mations.

53 Contributions receivable from donors include amounts due but not yet recened undersigned donor
agresments, other than those amounts for future periods dependent on the successful complstion of =arlisr
chases of work.

5l Contributions receivakble from donors are shown net of contributions adjustments related to sllowance
for doubtful accounts based on an indwvidual revisw of each receivable. Amounts due beyond 2020 are discounted
cazed on likely timings of such future cash flows. A review of amounts due a5 &t 31 December 2020 indicated that
no such adjustments were reguired on outstanding balances.

55 Im the caz= of both Member state assessments and donor voluntary coniributions due, adjustments ara
made to better reflect the fair value of the receivables in the financizl staternents but constitute neither 2 formal
write-off of the receivable nor a releasing of the third party from their oblization.
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Mote 2.3: Inventories

Consodidated

2020

GEP
MO publications 463 433 1,038 751 463 433 1,038 751
Wode| courses 11,513 131613 11,513 131613
Aublic relations artichas - - 44 714 18 553

TOTAL INVENTORIES 474 945

Inweniorss pesondiation — 40

Gpening inventories 1,061,365 1,057 844
Jurchases 00 TEG 1,071,003
Total mventories available for sale 1,452,151 125 846
Cast of sales (561,180} [976,280)
Cast ol Tree distributions 15,454} |9, 008!
meeritory adjuestrmenl (13,360} 2260
Clasing inveritories B75 177 1 145 827
Alleawancs far impairmenit (400 257} (84, 453]

TOTAL INVENTORIES 474 945 1,061,365

Opening C lewting
Balanoe Litiliz ation | et e Bl e
01,01 2020 3112 3000
GBP EBP
4E4, 694

4E4 694

Allswancs [ar imaairmeant - obsolets books B4 453 - 400 2%

il

TOTAL ALLOWWANCE

&5 & review of the stock holdings were carried oot during mid-year and yesr-end in determining the
orovizions of £484,684, covering cbsolescence, dow-moving and excess stock holdings.

&7 &5 8t 31 Decernbsr 2020, WAL held inventory of public relations articles walued at £44,714
|2019: £28,552).
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Mote 2.4: Advances to Sub-Contractors

8 Advamces to sub-contractors are payments made under contract with regional bodies and similar
organizations which, acting as implementing agents or partners. deliver technical cooperstion programmes on the
iorganizstion's oehalf. Thess sdvances are then offset sgainst approved erpenditure reports &8s the contract is
delivered. In addition, advances made to UNDP to provide regional or national services on the Organization's
oehzlf, through the Service Clearing Account arrangement, are 3lso considered to be advances to sub-contractors.

The toE outstanding advances at the end of the financizl period were made to the following:

= ==

Sub-Contrachors

miergovernmental Doeancgraphic Cammission of UMESCO {1OC-UMESCO) 238 390 05,057
United Hations Deve logement Programme - Servoe Clearmg Account |[UMOP 5C4&) 165 38E 215 500
Cantral American Cammission on hariteme Transport (COCAT AR | 63,037 131 535
The Secratasiat af the Pacilc Community (5PC) 40 214 172 063
Arafectura Naval Argenting (PRA]) 3,400 18 551
Camisian Permanente del Pacifico Sur (CPPS) 5171 13 223
Aartnerships i Environmental Management for the Seas af East Asia [FERASER] 13 E8D Gd
Orthasrs 15081 115 500

TOTAL ADYAMCES TO SUE-CONTRACTORS

Mote 2.5: Other Receivables

Consohidabed

2020 2019
GEP GEP

Relating Lo exchange lransactions

Sdwarices to stafl BE1 144 1,057, 667 935 406 1,113 34E
Taxes recaveralle 1,170,523 G4, D4 1,1E8 591 GEL 255
Sdvarices to vendars 45 658 Gl T1E 407 144 434 570
Fallowships - - 45 354 185 320
biscelarieaus 2E5, 917 5158450 540,110 Bd5,08E
2 363 641 2312 288 3, 206915 3,263 590
Relating Lo nor-exchange ransactions
Fallowships - 455 413
Taxes recoveralble - 31 DG4 13,467
- - AB0ATE 13 467

TOTAL OTHER RECEIVABLES L CHERRR

(] &dvances to staff are for Education Grants. travel and other staff entitlements made in accordance with
the 5taf Regulations and 13ff Rules. The most significant advances to 5taf are shown below:

Consolidated

2030 1015
Sedvances b skaff GBEP EEP
Cducation Grant sdvance G612 703 648 D51 GEEG 79 GOE 120
Swerwics incurred injury 202065 203,543 202 065 203,543
Home leave prepaymernl 31 104 105 296 31 371 111 557
Seasan tickel loan 217 54 BGE 217 54 BEE
Others 15,055 41 895 35050 46 B0

TOTAL ACYAMCES T STAFF 881,144 935 406 1,119 348
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70 Educztion Grant advances are paid annually to eligible sta and ars amortized over the academic year
for expenditure recognition purposes.

7L service incurred injury are medical cost advanced to staff due o workplece injury, which are recoverakble
from the insurance provider.

72 Eligible =stzff recsive one homs leave travel entitlernent in & two-yesr period, the costs of which are
spread over that two-year period, which may result in 3 prepayment where 313ff travel in the first year of their
entitlernent or an eccrual where travel is primarily 1o be taken in the second year of entitlement.

i
Lua

Seazon ticket loans to staff are typically recoversd through eleven equal monthhy payroll deductions.

T4 Taxes recoverable are value added tax, airport tax, insurance premium tax and emvironment T3z, which
are recoverable from the government of the host country under the terms of the relevant host countryagreement.
Cue to the restrictions put in place as 3 result of the pandemic, officials from the host country were unable to
oerform the necessary audit for reimbursement: this «ill commeance once the restrictions hawve been lifted.

75 &dvances to wvendors gre for payments in advancs of goods and service delivery.

75 Fellowships are due at the start of the school term wpon arrival and confirmation of physical presence of
the student.

77 The miscellzaneous category includes, inter alia, amounts due under sub-letting agreements (where IMO

manages the office space and recovers from third parties), cafeteria functions receivable and travel recoversble
from sponsors.

Mote 2.6: Inwvestment in Bonds

7B 45 3t 31 December 2020, the total value of investment in bonds of £2 175,153 (20109: £2,136,706)
represents the £812, 016 [2019: £855,260] held by WU and the £1,352,237 (2018: £1,281,445] held by IBLL
Total interest earned in 2020 and 2013 amounted to £13,272 [SEK 156,141) and £15,673 {5EK 186, 160] for Wil
respectively. and £13,516 (£15,185) and £25,553 [€25,018) for IMLI respectively.

= Wil invested the contribution made towards the Endowment Fund in consistent with the long-term
objective of growing capital bese of the fund. The investment is managed by Mordea Bank and was placed in June
2047 in low-risk assets, i.e., fixed Income investment in @ portfolio consisting of corporate and hybrid bonds for a
total nominal value of €£1,000,000 with siz counterparties (four counterparties st €200,.000 and two counterpartias
at €£100,000). The maturity detes of the imvestment in bonds ranged from & April 2020 to 15 lanuary 2027 and
with avield ranging from 0.40% to 3.31% per annum. Total interest earmed in 2020 and 2012 amounted to£14,810
|SEK 156,141) and €17 585 [SEK 166, 160] respectively. During 2020, investrment amounting to €100,000 matured,
gaving & balance of €£800,000 (SEK 8,032.400) n total investment as &t 31 December 2020
12019: €1, 000, 000,/5EK 10,430,000].

a0 Furthermore, 1ML allocated an amount of €1.5 million on 1 January 2048 to &n investrment fund that is
managed oy the Azsst Mansgement arm of the Bank of valletta (B0V), 3 Mzltese bank. The BOV subsidiary created
a bezpoke portfolio fund for IMLLin line with its investment parameters. The investmsant is expected to be held fior
a period of five years {the invesbment may be terminated by IML &t any ©ime but subject to IMLI ghving the B0V
notice of & 30-day calendar pericd). The inftial investment of the fund was of €1,500,000.  During the year, the
total valus of investment decreased by €3,784 to €1,500,261 35 3t 31 December 2020 [2015: €1,504,045). At the
end of December 2020, the market value of the fund stood 3t €£1,553,345, resulting in an appreciation in value of
€535 084,
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MNote 2.7: Property, Plant and Equipment

Aasel chlegory — IO
COM L 2 MR Conlarance Cehteien Funitung & Laasad
B [T Galpiiia FviiL efppimnies] Fisiife s i Pl [

Ak | i 1y a3

Dpeimg Balanie 00 012030 1,674,472 5,604 154 112,635 618473 177,602 104, B4 6,182,330
Laditionk 154, 208 72,143 54,013 £3IE - 6,581 104,573
stz il (467 SEE| - 3T 1) [HECEY {13,615 - 445430
Oosieg Balinca 31132020 1,658,307 5, ETE, 207 143 657 G614 357 763,734 121,471 5871 1&3

Aeztuimsakaited Depe e latian

CHpaiert g Balanes 04012000 3 &4, 700 E3d,047 184,544 505 040 450,576 674510 4,533,352
Digresiation Surge b the year i 1&E 235, 100 3,453 +N LS IR5 417 FER Tt ] L5 10, 34
O iapad alk {487 566| - 57302 {in,044| {13,615) . [EEEE all
Cosieg Salance 31132020 1,590,371 1,084, 0&T 31,014 504 949 E049, 135 3,555 4,732,112

Hut Book Value

Opemng Balande 0 012000 £33, 6ES TEG, 207 3,05 11533 I1E0Q6 47,439 1,549,974

CUO51RE BALANCE 31,13, 301 AR EL X 19,808 1545949 1,138,068

a1 Property, plant and equipment ars capitalized if their cost is grester than or equal to the threshold limit
E=t 8t £500. The azz=ts value, l25s any estimated disposa! price, iz depreciated over the assets estimated wseful life
using the straight-line method. The threshold level is currently reviewed together with the estimated useful life as
part of the system-wide review oy the UK Task Force in Aocountng Sandards.

a2 The IMO Headguarters building is not part of property, plant and equipment as the IMO is & tenant in
the building under a lzgs= which iz deemed to be an opsreting lease under the provizions of IP5AS 13, Further
disclosures on the treatment of this lease are provided in Mote 2.12.2.

a3 Azzets arereviewed annually to determineifthere s any impairmentin theirvalue. During 2020, 287 items
of obsolete or traded-in property. plant and eguipment with zerc net book velue wers disposed of or de-
recognized, a5 detailed in the table below:

Desrription Mumber of Purchasge Vale
ItEms

Desklops, Laptops, Printers, Manitors 250 189 650
Servers, Storage Devioas, Radio, MEcellanedus 29 202 586
Chairs, Cupfaands i 4563
Leased aquipment 2 13 818
‘ehicle 1 37,9491
M is Wituak 1 #11
TOTAL BT 445 420

45
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Asset @ategory — Consolidated

Coamim N b2 AT Confaranca Vehichs Fusin RLina: & e
& Togipienl  ofuipmont FEEIERS Misbumas e

Operen g Balanes 04012010 1,614, RIS B, H0 154 ] gl i1l 603 185, E17 T 06,143

Raditiong 114,005 71143 114,174 14,061 . 19,012 441,128

Dispesal (454,712} - 71,185} {35,532} TEETH] 13,333| SR, 3|

Fuchiraga flatd Mo vt £9,920 : 10,844 20,450 : 15, 130 125 A%
Dilfesunce

Closieg Salanca 20,13 2030 3,845,019 B, 676 20T s, &54 080, 210 TE3,TE4 333,633 T A4 802

Bt umikined Daprasiabon

Cperen g Balanee 04012010 1,104,013 AEE 04T it s E15,071 450,578 128,50 5537,212

Dgr e lation Surge b the peai Fo RS 235400 13, &l 4. BES 165,437 34,214 T2, 643

Dipadaly [454,722| - T1.085] |31.244] 13, 81| [FEREE] |SE4,301]
Euchirga Rara Movamant £3,794 . £.178 21,394 : 12,590 105,958
Dilletane

Closing Salince 2017 2050 3,00, 4158 L 064 04T 197,779 BED,1OF ML 185 161,887 B, 518

Hat Book Vaue

Ot ren g Balanes 04 01 2020 LG, A1l VRS, 207 5,515 136, &1 115,016 a7, 51 1 20 01

CUOSIMG BALAMCE 31.12.2400 LE A 611350 S 1472,BE0

B The totzl valus reported under "Mizcellansous” 33 &t 31 December 2020 includes the refersnce liorary
of £8,327 {2019: £15,153] held by IMLI, with additionzl reference texts being capitalized and deprecizted over a
ceriod of thres years.

a5 This note includes the effect of the revaluation of the property, plant and equipment held by \WWhiU 3nd
IMLI with & met impact of £19,505 {2019: £15,258] resulting from the change in value of the swedizh Krona and
Euro respectively from 1 January to 31 December 2020. Opening balances ars presented &t the exchange rate
appliceble on 1 January 2020 and closing balances st the rate applicable on 31 December 2020, while depraciation
charges, additions and disposals for the year are shown &t the average rate of exchange, consistent with Statement
| and Statement I, respectively.

a5 The City of Malmd provides leasing free of rent and maintenance for the WwnU teaching and
administration building. In kind contricutions of services are not recognized in WhU's financial statements. The
ouildings used by IMLI are not included as the Institute has the bare use of the premises. The University of Malta
and the Sovernment of Malta have made the bwilding availzble for uze by the Institute for 15 years under the
terms of an agreement dated 26 May L288. The Sovernment of Malta has since extended the period for & further
254ears and i reimboursss the repair and maintenance costs up To spprodimately €3,000 [£5,010] (2019 £7,925].
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Note 2.8: Intangible Assets

Externalhy Externalhy
pure haged pure haged
St re softwiane
A Contolidated
Cast
Oprening Batanee 01,01, 32020 31,516,282 3,705,248
Additians % 308 31,135
Disposalks 116,052) 145,579
Exchange Rate Moverment Differances - 18,3332
Cloding Balanecs 3112, 2020 1,503 S8R 3709, 130
Secumulated Amorlicalion
Opening Batance 01,01, 3020 3404, 081 1488 931
Amortizatian change Tar the year 104a,601 154,002
Disposals 116,052) 145,579
Exchange Rate Movement Differances - 9,332
Clading Balance 31.12.2020 3,484,550 3.606,6E6
Hat Book Valuws
Opening Bakanes 01.01. 3020 112,201 216,317

CLOSING BALANCE 31 12 F030 i 107 444

a7 Purchazed intangible assets are capitalized if their cost iz grester than or equal to the threshold of £500,
with the exception of intermally developed software where the threshold is £50,000 in view of the complexity in
accurately assigning costs for development projects below this amount. The capitalized value of the internally
developed software excludes thoss costs relzted to research 2nd maintenance.

i This note includes the effect of the revaluation of the Intangible Assets held by Wil with 3 net impact
of £9,000 [2019: £2,5398) resulting from the change in value of the Swedish Krona fram L January to 31 Decembsr
2020, Opening balances are presented 3t the exchange rete appliceble on 1 January 2020 and closing balances =t
the rate applicable on 31 December 2020, while depreciation charges and additions for the year are shown at the
average rate of exchange, consistent with Stetement 1 and Statement 11, respectively.

k=] During the reportingyear, a total of 15 (sixfor IMO and nine for Whil] acguired software with 2 purchase
value of £16,002 for IMO and £20,457 (SEK 345,210] for WL were de-recognized.
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Mote 1.9: Payables and Accruals

Consolidated

2030 2019
EBP EBP

Relating Lo exchange transactions

Aocruals 1,047 B30 1,824,333 1,175 206 1,913 596
Pagable to wendors 1,175 538 949 25 1,208,153 1,028 7113
Sdwances from customers 262 611 Il0,654 333, 650 I00,665
Pagable to stall 17378 48 145 X7 278 4%,1449
elawships = - BT B96 185949
Delarrad revenue 1% 333 12023 19,333 22023
Ot haar - - - G208
Exchangsa Transactions 2,556,999 3,144 423 2 8E5.315 3573103
Relating Lo nor-exchange transactions

Fallowships - - 3,150 2SE 4,135 557
Candition on danor canlbrbutions %142 545 4,131 025 3,142 545 4,131 025
Sdwanoe contriutions 2,055 023 1,681 121 4,114 336 3,636,107
Cantrisutions Incentive Scheme 106 127 166,276 106, 127 166,276
Delarrad revenue 142 525 IG5, 014 142 525 IG65,014
Pagable to donars 144 155 B2,0a5 144 158 66,271
Ot haar - - - 01003
Hon-Exchange Trandactions 5,635,179 6,346,550 10,840,650 12,672 758

TOTAL PAYABLES &N D &WDORLIALS B 1921 178 0,430,973 16,245 861

=l accruals represent sstimates for the value of goods or sa2rvices received, which have mot yet been
irvoiced and for which the cost is not yet ceriain, most notably the provision of utilities and services delivered
through the UMDP Service Clearing saccount [SCA), and lizbilities for 2oods and services received or provided to
MO during the perod under agreed contracts but which have not yet been invoiced.

= Paysbles to vendors relste to amounts due for goods and services forwhich imvoices have been received.
= advamces from customers reflect payments received prior to delivery of goods and services.
53 Payable to staff represents travel clzim on trip completion, reimbursement of expenszes and unused

annual lesve for temporary staff.

g4 Fellzwshizs 2nd donations recsived and accrued for the academic year 2020/2021 relating to Wil and
IMLI are apportioned over the period of the academic year. The amounts received or sccrued im respsct of that
cart of the acadernic year falling in 2020 are disclosed a5 sdvance receipts.

g5 Deferred revenus relates to amounts received imthe year for which the services have not b=en provided,
as at the reporting date.

=5 The Organization recognizes as a lability conditions attached to certzin voluntary contributions.
Conditions may be imposed by donors on the uss of contributions and include both & performance obligstion to
uze the donation in 3 specified manner, and an enforceable return obligation to return the donstion, if it is not
used in the specified manner. The amount recognized a& & lighility is the best estimate of the amount that would
o= required to ssttle the oblisation at the reporting date. As IMO satisfies the conditions on woluntary
cantributions through performance in the specified manner, the carrying amaunt of the lisbility is reduced and an
amount of revenus sgual to that reduction is recognized. The breskdown of the total value of the condition on
danor contributions, 35 31 31 Decemiber 2020, is shown.
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Consolidated
2020 2015

Condition on donar oo iributions EBP EBP

Eurppean Dommisssan — Cagaaty Building lor Climate 3,005 106 3 OO 227 2,005, 106 3 G0, 223
Sdibgation in the Maritirme Shpping Industry

European Cormimisdan — Wetlerr Medilerranean
Region MMarine O and HNS Pollution Cooperation 147 B30 1318 553 147 B30 138 653
etk MOPaCa)

Eurppean Dommissaan — Medinerranean Decidion
Suppart Systam lTor Marine Safaty |BMEDESS-4R 5]
TOTAL 8,131,025

= Advance contributions reflect balances recened from Member States dunng 2020 towards the 2021
assessed contributions and beyond.

SE Under the Contributions Incentive Scheme |CI5], 2 part of the interest earned on the Genaral Fund is
returned to Member States, the zllocstion being based on & points systemn reflecting the timing and amount of the
receipt of their current year assessments. The sccumulated CIS earnings up to 2020 totslled £108.127 of which
£77,250 relztes to CI5 earned during 2020 to be distributed during 2022. & residual balance for prior years
amounting to £28,877 remains 3waiting instruction from two Member States.

=1 Payables to donors represent the balance of unspent contributions for projects pending refund.

Mote 2.10: Provisions for warranties

Consolidated

2020 1%
EBP EEP
fublication sales warranties 53 813 E2 851 53 813 E21.B53
TOTAL PROVISMONS FOR WARRANTIES 23,813 B2,.853 23,813 E2,852
Ohpe i g C hesi g
Balance Litiliz ation Inecr e mas Ba|ance
0101 2020 3112 3000
GEP GEP EBP GEP
WO Publications Bl 387 (710, 355) 43 416 53,448
Sdodel Cowrsai 1 465 | 247 |2853} 155
TOTAL ALLOWANCE E2,852 (70,602} 41,563 53,813
100 The Organization's szles of publications are primarily made through a network of distributors rather than

directly to end wsers. The Crganization has an established practice that, on publication of 2 new version of any
tithe, distributors may return unsold copies of the previous wersion, in line with the IMO policy for obsolete returns
with the credit being =2t against purchases of the new titlz or 3 refund being issued. Awarranty provision has been
established to reflect possible future returns of sales made during the year. the level of provision being besed on
the lzvel of z3l=s in the year and past experience of returnlevels.
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Note 2.11: Employee Benefits

Covi Sodicker e
2020 2015

GEP EBEP

Current Liabilities

Shart-tarm amployes banelils 2314 508 107 B7E ZEDOTY g 108
Tesminatian benalits - o5 400 - o5 400
Total Current Employee Benefiis 234 508 207 278 BT 335508

Man-Current Liakilities

foit-ampliayment benalfits

Alter service haalth Msurance 4% 962 547 41,740 751 4% 962 547 41,740 751
Aepatriation 4,632 350 4, 560, 544 5,618 850 5,412 035
Socrwed dnnual Leawve 2475577 2518 334 2955 075 2,874 541
Tatal Hon-Current Employes Benafits 51,060,884 48,819,639 52,580 486 50,037 342

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS LIABILITIES 49,116,917 52,860,560 50,352 850

2111 :valuation of Employee Benefits Liabilities

101 Employee bensfits liabilities are determinsd by professional actuaries or czloulzted by MO based on
cersonnel data and past payment expsrience. a5 3t 31 December 2020, tofal employse benefits liabilities
amounted to £51,295,302 (2019: £49,116,217), of which £51,060,8584 [201%5: £48,8109,639] was calculated by the
actuaries and £234.508 (2018: £257.278) was calculeted by IMO. Actuarizl weluations sre typically underizken
every two years, the last full valuation was undertaken 3: 3t 31 December 2015

102 In determining its post-employrment lizbilities, WeaU used an estimats of the travel and shiprnent costs
oased on the prevailing market prices from the duty station to the home country to which the staff membsr and
eligible dependants. if any, ars entitled to return. The amount of the lizbility for the unus=d annuzl l=2ave a5 at the
reporiing dete was calculated based on the balance of unused annua! leave days {up to 3@ madmum of S0 days)
and the current salary rate of the steff member. The employss benefits for home leave represents the amounts
accrued for the year with the cost spread over two years.,

2.11.2 ; Short-Term Employee Benefits

103 short-term employee bensfits comprize mainky wages and peyroll relsted sllowances, first time
employes benefits, education grant relsted benefis and other benefits such a5 home leave and paid annuzl lzave
and sick leave.

104 Short-term employes benefits are expected to be settled within 12 months sfter the end of the pericd
in which the smployees render the related sarvice and are messured 3t their nominal values based on past
oaEyrment experisnce.

105 There is &n increase in current liabilities relating to home leave of £205,277 {2019: £162,00s) for IMO
and £254,343 [2018: £190,235] for consolidated. This was mainly due to home leave which have not been utilized
due to the pandsmic in 2020 25 there were worldwide restrictions on trawel. Majorty of home leave travel
intended for 2020 were postponed due tothe COVID-19 coronavires pandemic, and thersfors the expenditurs for
thos= staff members that were entitled to travel during 2020 were accrued and the trips are deferred to 2021,



FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2.11.3 : Post-Employment Benefits

108 Arrangements relsting to the UMJSPF gre 2t out in Mote2.11.7.

107 ASHI iz & plan that sllows eligible retiress and their eligible family members to participate in the Cigna
Medical scheme (formerly Van Breda) for 50% of the cost of the contribution of active staff members for the
defined type of coverage. The Organization subsidizes the remaining amount of the premium to be paid to the
third-party imsurer. Membership of Cigna is compulsory for all new employees, although participation in the ASHI
scheme after retirement is voluntary. Cigna is the main third-party insurance provider for ASHI benefits; howsver,
there are =till 3 small number of retirees coversd by the former insursr, BUPA. [Eritizh United Provident
Association)

108 Repatristion bensfits consist of 2 repatriation grant lump sum, travel of the staff member and eligible
dependants and shipment of their perzonal effects. Az of 1 July 2017, the repatriation bensfit relating to shipment
of personal effects may be taken 2z 3 lump sum payment. The Organization pays the amounts due for repatristion
grant, travel and relocation expenses for the entitled staff members.

10o The liabilities include the current service costs and the interest costs for 2020, less benefit payments
made and, where spplicable, plan participants' contributions in addition to the impact of the actuarial gains and
losses.

2.11.4 : other Long-Term Employee Benefits

110 although annual lesve is 2 short-term employes benefic, the right 1o receive payment for unused annuzl
lzave and, conseguently, the Crganization's liakility for this balance, is shown &5 & long-term employee benefit as
that right only crystallizes on separation, typically more than twelve months from the reportiing date.

2145 : Termination Employee Benefits

111 a5 at 31 December 2020, there are no formal plans, without ressonable possibility of withdrawal, to
finish the employment of staff membsrs who have not yet separsted from the Organization.

2146 : Actuarial Valuations of Post-Employment and Other Separation Related Benefits
11z Liabilities arising from post-employment benefits and other long-term employes benefits [i.e., accreed
unuzed annual leave) are determined by consuliing actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method. These

employee benefits are establizhed for those staff members who are entitled o such benefits under the IMO Staff
Regulations and 3taf Rules. Actuarizl veluations are ypically undertaken every twoyears.
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21161 ; Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

113 actusnal assumptions are reguired to be disclosed in the financial stetements in accordance with IP5AS
33, During =ach actuarial study, IMC, in conjunction with the actuary, reviews and selects assumptions that will
o= used by the sctuaries im the year-end veluation to determine the expense and contribution requirements fior
D'z sfter-zervice benefit planz |post-employment benefits and unused accrued annual leave). In 2ddition, each
actuarizl assumption iz reguired to be disclosed in absolute terms.

114 The following assumptions have been used to estimate the value of the post-employment and accreed
unused annusl lsave employes lisbilities for IMO, 35 2t 31 December 2018, based on the expenditurs projections
for the reporting perod.

31 Dacember 2009 31 Decamber 2017
Ganeral sumplicong

Discownt rate 210% p.a 18%p.a
General inflation 1% pa. 2% pa
sdartality S5% ol 53P4 tables S0% of 5204 tables

CHI_2018 projections with & keng-term CWI_2016 praojections with a bang-term
SAartality improsemants R .

improvemeant rate al 1.35% pa improvement rate ol 1.25% pa
Withdrawal rates 3.25% pa fixed lor all ages
Aatirament Bl rmernbers retire at their Narmal Betirement Age

Asumptions wiad Lo value ASHI banelits

Participation alter S5% ol eligible members are assumed 1o continue coversge after retirement. Itis

relmarnant assurned that coverage will not be dropped omnde elected.

< For current employess it is assurmed that G0% will lect for covarage Tor their spouse al
poiges
retirement. Males are assumed to be three years older than their spouse.

Healthcars trand increades 4% p.a. liwed

Aa 1.5% p.a. for those under 65, 2.5% poa. for thase batween 65 and 70 reducing in Teee-

gEing increated .
year age bands o nil for those aver age 50.

Aasumpliong used 10 walue repalriation benafits

Al eligible employess will receive the benefit on separation Irom service subject 1o

Participation .
completng fve gears” sarvice,

General nflation plus an age-related scale of 6.1% pa st age 20 reducing on 3 straight-

Age-related salary scale line Dasis to 1.0 pa at age 60 for profesdsional stall, and from 3.9% pa a1 20 w0 1.0% pa
at sge 65 for general stalf.
Rapatriation travel costs Iri line with general Bflatian

Azgurmpliong used Lo value annual leave plan

Jarticipation Al eligible employess will receive the benefit on separation Trom servioe
Age-related salary scale B for repatriation benefit.

reorediEd in annwal lEave Based on compléted service — 10.9% pa in years L 1o 3, 1.0% poa Tor vesrs 4 to B ol
galance sapvice and 0.5% pa thersaltar
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211.6.2 : Reconciliztion of Defined Benefit Obligation

After-Sefvice o arerued
IMO Hesith e Tl e
Insuranee Benefit Plan

Plan Flan

EEP
Defmed Benelit Obligation as at 01.01 2030 41,740,761 4 560 544 2518 334 48 815 630
Adjustment o 0101 2030 balances
Sereioe cost for 2020 2,038 331 126,573 17,500 2172404
mberail oot Tor 2020 B67,534 53,003 52,021 1,082 557
Actwal eost Tar 2030 (B74,079] (157, 755| (111 37E| (L3 716
DEFIMED BEMEFIT OBLIGATION &% AT 31.12 32020 43,962 547 4,632 360 24754977 51,060,884

115 actuarial ggins and losses are recognissd through the stetement on Changes in Met Aszets whils ssrvice

costs and interest costs are included as part of "st3ff and Cther Personnel Costs™ in the Statement of Financial
Parformancs.

116 The service and intersst costs are bessed on projections for yeer to 31 December 2020 from the actuary
waluation carried out for the reporting year 2015, The estimate is based on the sssumptions adopied &t the Review
Cate and assumes the following:

#  Cash flows to and from the Plans are broadly unchanged from 2018 figures.

&  There will b& no events that would give rise to 3 setdement/curtzilment/past s=rvice cost

#  Experience over the period is in ling with the assumptions made and s0 there are no actusral gains
or lossss,

117 Mone of the emnployss benefits liskbilities associated with WU and IMLI have been subject to actuarizl
eztimate, and conseguentlhy the table above reflects both the MO and consolidated positions.

21163 : Summary of Prior Year Amounts

118 The cumulative amount presented in the statement of changes in net assets/equity is that generated as
a result of the actuarial valustion carried out in 2019.

After-Serviee PR
|
MO Health Repatriation  ©CU
’ Insurance Benafit plan Ul Leave
. Plan
Plan
GEP GEP GEP
Actwarial [gain)Nads o at 01.01. 2030 9,202,677 1,133,591 1,924, 125 12 250 795
Bctwarial |gain]flads s 2030 - . . .
ACTUARIAL (EAIN) LOSS A5 AT 31.12.2020 9,202 677 1,173,993 1974125 1% 250,795
118 &5 no Actuarial stedy was conducted for the yesr ended 31 December 2020, the assumptions underlying

thie lizkilty remsain unchanged and consequenthy there are no actwsrial gains or losses for the year.
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31.12. 3020 31.17.3019 31.1% 3018 31.12.3017 31.1F 3016

GEF GBEF GHEF GEF GEF

A5HI

present Value of Defined Benefit
rEREr RalhE e E==nel 43962547 41740761 40,173,066 40303417 35507753

Oalgatian
EIp!.-. ?rn_'e |gain) lods on Scheme i (6,518, 500) i 1 701,085 i
Liabilities
Lass/[Sain} on changes in assumptions - 5,211,743  [2,091,430) 1,302,853 4575862
used 1o walue Sehame liabditias
Rapatriation
Araent Walue of Dafined 8 fit

FERE AR RS S 4,622,360 4,560,544 2,992 525 3,405,414 3,373,544
Ohlgation
o P " H i [
_:-:p_. : TrlLle |gain] lois an Scheme i B34.572 i 138 BG4 i
Liabilities
Lass/|Gain) an changes in astumplions S o EE e
used 1o walue Scherne liabiities 359,368 1192 281, 243,835
Amnudl Leagee
dresent Valls af Defined Rensi 2,475,877 2,518,334 2,213,147 2,288,463 2,213,600
Ohlgation
E:‘:pg--. ?rn.'e |gain] lois an Scheme i 141 545 i 436 460 i
Liabilities
Lass/|Gain) an changes in assumplions i 199,187 i (188, 518" 188,507

used b walue Seharne liabditieg

Tatal [A5HI, REF, L)

Aradent Value of Defined Banelil
Ohlgatian

Experence |gain] loi on Scheme

51,060,884 48 819,639 45 378,635 45 998, 154 41,094 457

e - |5,483, 380) - 22774349 -
Liabilities
. 'G'.: .. I..-.. =' i I.'..
Lass{|Gain} an changes In assumptions - &770,088  |2,091440) 921,154 5,004,505
used 10 walue Seharms liabditiss
21164 : Expected Costs during 2021
120 The expectsd contribution of IMO in 2021 to the defined benefits planz iz £1,401,182 |2020 astimate:

£1.205,000). This has been derived from the 2020 paid figures with the ASHI payments unchanged for 2021 and
the repatriation and annual leave payments increzsing in line with general inflation.

2447 : United Mations Joint 5taff Pension Fund

121 IMID i= 3 member organization participating in the United Mations Joint 5t3ff Pension Fund (the “Fund”].
which wes establizhed by the United Mations Gensral Assembly to provide retirement, death, dizability and related
benefits to employsss. The Fund is a funded, mult-employer defined bensfit plan. Az specified in Artics 3|b) of
the Resgulations of the Fund, membership in the Fund shall b2 open to the specialized asencies and to any other
international, intergovernmentzl crganization which participates in the common system of salaries, sllowances
and other conditions of service of the United Mations and the specizlized agencies. &= of 1 January 2019, staff
members of WKW have become members of LNISFF.

122 The Fund exposes participsting organizations to acbearial risks associsted with the current and former
employess of other organizations participating in the Fund. with the result that thers is no consistent and relizble
[zazis for allocating the oblization, plan ass2ts and costs to individuzl organizations participating in the Fund. The
organizetions and the Fund, in line with the other participating organizations in the Fund, are not in 3 position to
identify the Organization's proportionate thare of the defined benefit abligation, the plan assets and the costs
assacisted with the plan with sufficient relizbility for accounting purposss. Hence, the Organization has treated
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this plan as if it were a defined comtribution plan in line with the requirements of IPSAS 33, Employss Bensfits. The
arganization’s contributions to the Fund during the financial period are recognized as expenses in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

123 The Fund’s Regulations state that the Pension Board shall have an actuarial valuation made of the Fund
at least once every thres years by the Consulting Actuary. The practice of the Pension Board has been to carmy out
an actusrial valuation every two years wsing the Cpen Sroup Aggregste Method. The primary purpose of the
actuarizl veluation is to determine whether the current and estimated future assets of the Fund will be sufficient
to me=t its liabilities.

1z4 The Organization’s financial obligation to the Fund consists of its mandated contribution, 3t the rate
eztablizhed by the United Mations Seneral Assembly {currently at 7.8% for participants and 15.2% for membsr
organizations) together with any shars of any actuarial deficiency payments under Article 26 of the Regulations of
thie Pension Fund. such deficiency payments are only payable if and when the United Mations General Assembly
naz invoked the provision of Arficle 26, following determination that thers is 3 reguiremnent for deficiency
nayments based on an 3ssessment of the actuarial sufficiency of the Fund as of the valuation date. Each membsr
organization shall contribute to this defidenoy an amount proportionate to the total contributions which each paid
during the thres years preceding the valuation date.

125 The latest actuarial waluation for the Fund was completed as of 31 Decamber 2015, and 2 roll forveard of
the participation dats a= of 31 December 2012 to 31 December 2020 will b= used by the Fund for its 2020 financial
statements.

125 The sctusrial veluation 32 of 31 December 20418 resulted in 3 funded ratio of sctuarial azs2ts to actuarizl
izbilities, 2ssurning no future pension adjustments, of 144.2% [138.2% in the 2017 valuation). The fundsd ratio
wias 107.1% (102.7% in the 2017 veluation] when the current systerm of pension sdjustments was taken into
account.

127 after gssessing the actuarial sufficdency of the Fund, the Consuling Actuary concluded that there was no
requirement, as of 31 December 2012, for deficiency peyments under Arficle 28 of the Regulations of the Fund as
the actuarial value of assets exceeded the actuarisl value of all accrued liskilities under the plan. In addition, the
market valus of a:zets alzo excesded the actuarizl value of 2|l acorued ligbilities a3 of the valustion date. AT the
time of this report. the Generzl assembly has not invoked the provision of Aricle 26,

128 Should Article 26 be invoked due to an actuarial deficiency, either during the ongoing cperation or due
to the termination of the Fund, deficiency payments required from esch member arganization would be based
upan the proportion of that member organizetion’ s contributions to the total contributions paid to the Fund during
the thres years preceding the valuation date. Total contributions paid 1o the Fund during the preceding three
years (2017, 2018 and 2019) armmouwnted to USD 7,546.92 million, of which 0.27% was contributed by the
Organizetion.

128 During 2020, contributions paid te the Fund smounted to WSD 10,755,889 (2019: UsSD 5,050,535).
Expected contributions due in 2021 are approximatehy USD L0,720,000.

130 rdernbership of the Fund may be terminated by decision of the United Nations General Assembly, upon
the affirmzative recormmendztion of the Pension Board. A proportionate share of the total assets of the Fund &t
the date of termination shall b= paid to the former member organization for the exclusive benefit of its staff who
wiere participants in the Fund &t that date, pursuant to an srrangement mutuslly agresd between the organizstion
and the Fund. The amount is determined by the United Mations Joint 3taf Pension Board based on an actuarial
valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund on the date of termination; no part of the assets which are in
excess of the liabilities are included in the amaount.

131 The United Mations Soard of Auditors cammies out an annual audit of the Fund and reports tothe Pension

Board and to the United Nations Genersl Assembly on the sudit every yesr. The Fund publishes quarterly reports
an its investments, and these can be viewed by visiting the Fund at www_unjspf.ars.
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Mote 212: Leases
2.12.1: Finanoe Leases
13z The Orzanization has finance leases in place for provision of generzsl office, high-wolums photocopisrs

and Wi-Fi netwoark eguipment for its Headguarters building. The present values of future payments dus under this
gzze sgreement are shown below.

Coansolidated

2030 ik

GEP GEP
Current 101 B25 151 713 101 B25 151,713
Har-current - 101 82 - 101,825
TOTAL FINAMCE LEASE LIABILITIES 101,825 253538 101,825 253,538
133 The difference between the minimum lease peyments due and the present velue of such payments is

analysed in the following table:

0 Comsalidated
ML Presedt AT Prasent
il T L Finamnee vabus af w1 TR T LE Finanoe valus af
s i i o
PEYMERL  harges minienum PO e charges iR
e T
payments payments
GEP GEP GEP GEP
Lais than are year 103 552 1,767 101,825 103,59z 1,767 101 825
O to five pears - - - - - -
TOTAL FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES: 103 552 1,767 101,825 103,552 1,767 101,825
134 There are no sublease peyments to be recsived on these leased assets. Ownership does not transfer to

the Organization on conclusion of the lease, nor are there any options in place to purchase the eguipment st that
time. The [23:2 agreement does not iImpose any restrictive covenants on the Organization. Meither WnU nor IKLI
nolds gzsets under finance leasss.

2.12.2: Operating Leases
135 The Organization has two opersting leasss: 1) with the Unitsd Kingdom govemment for the use of its

Hesdguarters building; and 2] with Tower Lessing for rental of coffee machines. The minimum lezss pEyments
under this leass are z2t out in the table below:

Consolidated

200
GEP

Mt later than ore e ar 1,212 346 1,185 751 1,212 346 1,105 751
Lales thar one vaar and not later than five years 6,030 040 5,978 755 6,030 040 5,978 755
Later than five pears 7,174 506 B 37D 257 7,174 506 B ETD 25T

TOTAL FUTURE MIKBALR LEASE PAYRENTS 14 417 39F [ 14 417 39F

136 The lease costs will be spresd over the term of the l2a:2 on 3 straight-line basis, an amount of £1,212, 846
naving been recognized as annuzl expenditure in the period.
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137 The lzase of the building expires on 28 October 2032 and does not contain 3 break dauss, nor doss it
contain renswal ar purchase options. The significant lzess arrangements are highlighted below:

#  Alterstions: The Organization is not entitled to make slierstions or sdditions affecting the structure
or the main s=rvices of the premises without written approval of the Landlord, the United Kingdom
(UK} governmenit.

#  Under-letting: When under-letting the building. the Organization must first offer to underlet to the
landlord.

#  Letting out of conference facilities: When letting out conference facilities for commercial purposss,
the Organization is required to "consider as 3 priority any reguest given with adequats prior notice
by the Landlord"; and

®  Sharing of income and expenses: The lease agresment reguires the sharing of all income from 'Met
Rentzl' and all costs of "Major Repairs” on an 30:20 basis between the Government of the United
Kingdom and the Organization.

138 The lzas=z of the coffee machine expires on 31 December 2024 and does not contain renswsl or purchase
options. There is an option for early termination with ane month's notice with 2 fixed penalty. At the end of the
agreement, the eguipment must be returned to the lessor.
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Mote 2.13: Fund Balances and Reserves

Opening Operating Other Closing
Balamn e X . Mavemants Balamnce
0101 2020 » ] i Redsryed 3112 2030
GBEP EBP GBEP
1. General Fund 14,0E4 315 134, B5d] 14,043,451
I. Waorking Cagpital Fund 1,440,387 417,589 1,857, 80a
3. Trading Fund 1,214 BES 13,417 158} 5,797,707
4. Termination Benefit Fund (35,460, BEE) (24,713} (35,485,581}
%, HO Capital Fund 2,550,981 593,641 3,544,623
5. Tradning and Ol opment Funi 270,181 |27 1E1]
T. Technical Conperation Fund 11,638,7 3,894,358 15,535,067
8. Bllabzral Operations and Muil-Danar Trust Fundst :
Giowermiment ot Noreay 3,240,037 2,104,029 5,3446.0
Delivering Strategy and Refoam — Voyage Tagether 3,930,114 59,358 3,979,472
Unied Mations Office an Drugs and Crime 1,502 His 1,502,885
Pl | Cioadrs s Dewiogimaent Trust Fund 1B, TE2 |12k, 4G7| 1,474,156
Infernaticeal bdast i Security Toast {IMST) Funi 558 H5S &, 207 1,015,103
Gowesmment ot China B=2,001 137,373 239,373
GESANP Trust Fund B85 340 97,761 T94,102
Member States Prafessicnals E=0,954 18,355 E5r9,350
Djibouti Code af Conduct Trast Funid 231.0EE 163,207 Eal,EE]
Gowmnmant of Ehe Bepuhblic of Konea E45,355 |74, 534h] 570,829
Otheer Bilateral Operations and kultbk-Conor Trost Funds 3,550 450 1,120, E13 4. 831,103

27 006,313

Other Closing

Consolidated B lames ) W ervesfriEndd in Balancs

01012030 I A Ragareay 31122030
Lhee P i

GRP GBP GBP GBP
TaTAL 35,372,345 1,358,065 539,004 43,309 508

132 The Organization maintains separgte acoounts for each Fund, which are combined into sight groups fior
reporiing purposes as 2t out above.

140 The General Fund was established for the purpose of atcounting for the expenditure of the Crganization.

ol funds and bélateral agreements with clsing babnces inexcess of £500,000 ane dischosed separabely, with oiher funds Ezing
aggregated wnder Other Bikteral Operathons and Multi-Coner Trust Funds'.

! Geamrnments af st a, Belgiam, Canaca, Egypl, Frande, Germany, Ghana, Raly, Malaysia, Betherlanss, Migeria, Qman, PRilippines, Saudl
Arabia, Unied farab Emirabes, United Kingdom, Unibed States of America, European Commission, International Transport Workers Federation,
Marwegian Agency for Development Coosperathan Unian af Greek Ship=nwners, UniSed Matians Develapmens Programmie [UNDF|, United
Mations Envirenmant Programme [UNEF|, BalastWater T¥ Documentary, Glabal Industry Afiance Fund [GlaBallast and GlMEEF], GoakBased
Ship Construction Standards (GES| Trust Fund, 180 Malacca and Singapare Straits Trust Fund, B40 West and Central Africa Markisme Securiby
Trwst Funed, B40/FERMPELC Trust Fund, Intemational Search & Research Fund [3&R], Lordon Conventicn-F ratacal TC Trust Funed, Barine Falldtion
Respanse Fund, Besearch and Deselapment Fund, Revision of the STOW Convention, Seminars and Workshaps and Tsanami Belief Fund.
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141 The Working Capital Fund was originally established 35 a US dollar-bas=d Fund by Asssmbly resolution
A 158(1) and was converted to sterling with effect from 1 January 1588 by assembly resolution A.633(15]B. The
ourpose of the Fund is to make advances, if necessary, to finance the budgstary sppropriations of the Resular
Budzet to cover temporany cash flow deficits. Assembly resclution A.1039(27} further authorized the Secrstany-
Zenersl to use the fund 25 & reserve to account for currency gains or losses in the regular budgst arising from
differences betwesn the United Mations ocperational rate of exchange and the rete against the pound sterling
adopted for caloulation of the appropriztion. 1t also authorises the secretary-Eenersl to advances such sums from
thie Working Capital Fund 25 may b= necessary 1o meet unforeseen or extraordinary expanses arising during the
ciennium, with the prior agresment of the Council, provided that such expenszes are of & clearly exceptional nature
and relate specifically to the Stratesic and High-level Action plans of the Orzanization and that the council is
assured that the relevant expenditure cannct be met by appropnate transfer action within the total budgst
approved for & calendar year.

142 The Printing Fund was established with effect from 1 January 1966 by Assermbly resclution A 100[1v) to
orovide for the production and sales of IMO publications, being subsequenthy replaced by the Trading Fund
through assembly resolution A.1014[26], brosdening its terms of reference ©0 encompass the Organization's
current commmercial activities.

143 The Termination Benefit Fund was established with effect from 1 January 1596 by Ass=mbly resolution
ABITI13) &t an inttial level of £900,000 to meet the costs 3ssocisted with terminstion benefits to staff of the
arganization. The scops of the Fund was widened to allow the financing of the sdditional costs of termporary
assiztance reguired to replace staff on long-term zick l=ave. From 2012 it was further widensd to accommodate
ong-term employes benefit labilties previously allocated among 3ll Funds on the basis of 3 headoount.

144 The Technical Cooperation Fund was ariginally established with effect from 1 lanuary 1586 by Assembly
resolution A.593(14]) 2= 3 US dollar-based fund, the intersst incorne from which was used to assist the Technical
Cooperation Programme of the Organization in eccordance with the proposal supported by the Aszembly in
oiennizl budzets. The Fund was converted to a stering-baszed fund with =ffzct from 1 January 1996 by assembly
resolution A.837[19). By that resolution, the scope of the Fund was widened to enable funds to be drawn down
and applied to techniczal copperation activities.

145 The Headguarters Capital Fund was established with effect from 1 January 1554 by assembly resolution
& T78(18) to meet the capital expenditure necessary for the efficient operation of the Organization and for fulfilling
the Orzanization's liskilities under the terms of the Lease for the Headguarters building between the Organization
and the Government of the United Kingdom. The scops of the Headguarters Capital Fund was widensed to include
expenditure on the design, installation and implementation of office sutomsation systems, induding training on
these systems.

148 The Trzining and Development Fund was establizhed with effect from 1 January 2002 by assembly
resolution &.908{22) at an initial level of £200,000 by & transfer from the surplus of the then Printing Fund. as
oart of the organizationzl strengthening initiatives and through assembly resolution A.1132{31), the Training and
Cevelopment Fund was closed during 2020 with the balance of the fund transferred to the General Fund. Traiming
and Development activities for the Sscretariat are now included within the Organization’s regular budget.

147 Trust Funds are estzblished to account for the expenditures related to the activities financed from the
respective donors. Fund balances represent the unexpendsd porticn of contributions that ars intended to be
utilized in future opsrational reguirements consistent with the Terms of Referance of the Fund. These constitute
I O's residual interest in the azs=ts after deducting all its habilities.
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MoTe 32 REVEMUE

Mote 3.1: Assessed Contributions

148 Totzl ass=szed contributions for 2020 amounted to £33,391,000 (2049 £33, 242,000) from 174 Membsr
states and 3 Associste Members and the organization’s ten largest confributors are shown below. Assessed
contributions are based on a3 flat base rate with additional cornponents based on economic factors using UN index
and merchant fleet tonnags. Wil and IMLI do not receive assessed contributions.

Ammount % of total
MO Member Siates GEP

1 Panama 4,731,355 14 2

i Liberia 3.581 884 1a.7

3 Warzhzll Islands 3,445,407 103

4 Singapors 2.047.004 £.1

5 Chinz 1,821 628 5.5

g Waliz 1,778,852 53

7 Hong Kang 1,408,550 432

g Ezhamas 1,352,522 4.1

=] United Kingdom 1,176,125 3.5

10 {Sres 211,174 L7
TOTAL 2 a2 T8 b6 6

148 In determining esch Member's ssssssment, the formula established by Assembly Resalution AT2E(17)

nas besn applied. This provides for: (1] 3 minimum assessment, calculated &t 2.24% of the total sssessment divided
egually between Member 5tates and 307 for Assocate Members: [2) 2 basic assessment. caloulsted &t 12 5% of
the totel assessment less the minimum 3ssessment. The United Mations General Assembly ssventy-third session
zcale of assessments for 2019-2021 has been zpplied in determining the besic 3sssssment; and (3] & tonnage
aszessment, calculated at 87.5% of the total assessment les: the minimum assessment and iz determined by the
gross registered tonnege attributable to Member States, as provided by HIS pdarkit pdaritime & Trede, following
the procedures established in Circular letter Mo, 3347,

hote 3.2: Donor Voluntary Contributions

150 Contributions through domor agreements are recognized as revenue 3t the point of signature, except to
the exbent that such agresment contains 8 condition within the mesning of IPSAS 23 — "Revenue from Mon-
Exchange Transactions" such that the contributions rust be returned if the condition is not met. For agreemenits
wihich do contain such a condition, revenue is recognized as the project is deliversd.
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151 R=venue from contributions received from donors during the reporting period amounted to £12, 230,208
12019: £ 11,441,314 and the Organization's ten largest contributors for 2020 ars shown b=low:

Amournt % of total donor
MO [Chmmor
GEP IFEvAET L
1 Government of Norway 3.257.730 ZB8.6
£ Eurcpean Commission 2,522,120 20.6
3 Eovernment of the Republic of Korea 2,152,552 17.7
4 United Mations Office on Drugs and Crime [UNCDC) 1,563,202 128
5 United Nations Emvironment Programme [UNEP) 858,058 7.8
& United Nations Development Programme (UNDF) 338,500 3.2
7 Government of J3pan 330,018 2.7
] Government of United 513tes of America 258,731 Z.1
=] Government of Germany 205,734 1.7
10 Government of Chinz 204,391 1.7
TOTAL 11 853134 5 o
15z Cther than the contributions made by new donors or additional contributions made by existing donors

during the year, the increase in donor contributions is mainly due to the timing of the recognition of revenus,
which fluctuates from year to year.

153 The consolidated group's ten largest contributors to donor revenue in 2020 are shown below:
Armnisurnt % of total donor
Consplidated Donor = R
1 Government of Morway 3,257,730 17.4
Z Eurcpesn Commission 2,955,328 15.0
3 Government of Sweden 2,420,250 12.3
a4 Republic of Korea 2,333,315 12.2
5 Nippon Foundation 1,844,345 10.4
] United Wations Office on Drugs and Crime (UMCDC) 1,553,202 B.4
T International Transport Workers Federation 1,074,487 5.7
g United Wations Environment Programme [UMEP] 958,055 5.1
g United Nations Development Programme (URNDP) 38E.500 2.1
10 Government of Japan 330,018 18
TOTAL 17326 835 o926
MNote 3.3: Commercial Activities
154 Key comrmercial revenue streams for the Organization and the consolidated group are shown below:
[T e] Consolidated
A0 2S 2OA il ke ]
GEP GBp GBP cBp
Cafeteria Sales 155,301 1,284,755 155,501 1,264,755
Aszzeszment fees 321,445 173,251 321,445 173,251
Letting of conference facilitiss and other _ _
4475132 42% 420 1,816,895 1,851,345

commercal revenue

TOTAL 10198148 15125571 11,572,535 16,587 4359
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155 The major components of IMO Publication 53les are shown below:

200 2009

GRPF GHP
zale of physical publications 5,995,887 10,708,308
Electronic publications 1,610,307 1,178,173
Roysltiss 1,380,304 910,77
Eubscripbions 154, 585 124 584
Model Courses 47,373 114,403
Other publications 45,330 102,943

TOTAL PLIBLICATION 5A1FS 9,278 ES0 13,198 085

156 In 2020 IMO publicstions gross szles, net s3les and revenue from postage resched £12.2m, £9m and
£26zk respectively [compared with 2019: £18m, £12.8m and £321k}. whilz this revenue indicates a reduction of
305, it is stressed that the 2020 resulfts have been reslised within the context of challenging glokbal trading
conditions in consequence of the COVID-12 pandemic. Faced with disruptions in supply chain channels, national
ockdowns in the UK and distributor countries, IMO has t3ken extreordinary mitigating steps to continue the sale
of physical books by sugmenting its dispstch potentizl of core publications im bulk through its external warehouse
and directly from the printing manufacturer. Furthermore, MO increased its efforts in marketing electronic
publications. Im 2020 revenues from electronic products scoounted for 34% of sales (up from 175 in 2019). Major
titles publish=d in 2020 included Procedures for Port State Control, IBC Code and S0OLAS. Other titles originally
clanned for 2020 were re-programmed to 2021 due to the postponement of IMO meetings. These publications
included major revenue earmers such as the IMCDS Code and the IMDGE Code Supplement. IO expects s sales
cotential to revert to the 2018 lsvels once the globel chzllengss of the COVID-1% pandemic 2re overcome.

Mote 3.4: Fellowships

57 Both wl and IkMU receive funds for fellowships to support students. IMO does not receive such
revenue, and consequently only the consolidated figures ars shown, which amounted to £5,828.086 for 2020
|2019: £5,777.277). The five largest aggregate contributors ars listed balow:

Amourrt % of total donor
Sponsors GHP TEAETILIE
1 Nippon Foundation 1.725.550 29.6
s Government of Horway 502,830 8.5
3 Intermational Transport Waorkers” Federation 420,375 7.2
4 Government of Migeria 353.533 £.1
5 Government of South Africa 237.318 4.1
TOTAL 3235712 556

Mote 3.5: Other Revenue

155 The most significant sources of other revenue are set out below:
Consolidated
200 ikl 209
=il R GBF GBPF
Intzrest eamed on investment of funds 2885 652,871 415,805 987,241
Other revenus 78158 35,548 171,831 440,285

TOTAL 587,736 127 506

|

2
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158 Despite the recent financial performance of the markets due to Cowid-12, the principal of the
iorganization’s investment portfolic remains s3fe. in line with 1ts investrment policy. a5 it holds high-guality assets
aimad at preserving principal. Interest income on the investment of excess funds was reduced from £852.871 0In
20109 to £258.619 in 2020 for IMO and from £987.241 in 2010 t0 £415,206 in 2020 for the consolidated. Adverse
impacts in the financizl marksts were the main driver for the decreases in investment revenue. The stesp decline
was caused by the lower interest rates in 2020 dus, in part, to the economic situation brought about by the
pandemic (0.35% in 2020 vs. 0.79% in 2013 for GEF and 0.62% in 2020 vs. 2.35% in 2019 for USD).

150 &g would be expected, credit rating agencies placed a numbsr of banks on negative ocutlook watch and
downgraded others due to the more difficult operating and economic conditions, low intersst rate environment
and lkehy deteriorating loan asset quality concerns. The Organization is actively monitorng all ratings for the
imvestrnent holdings and investment counterparties.
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MNoTe 42 EXPEMSES

Consolidated

H¥AD A0 Fiiak:]

GEP GRP GEP

4 1-5tall and ather periannel costs

rafessional and general service stall, axperts 20583 115 28,5313 161 37 696 0E1 35 653 2114
Apoaintrmeant and Legaration 042511 3 4736663 3 046,045 %522.103
Terminatesan beneafit T5 730 B3, 040 75, 700 B3040
Cansultants 1,675 888 1,695 604 2168 580 2432 006
Temporary assistance 1,707 198 1,887 135 1,708,055 1,901 483
:::mri’l ::::::;r:;:“'"'w”' translators, 713,075 875,087 713,075 875,007
Total stall and ather personnel costs 36,757 077 36,279,639 45 409,644 44 547 483
4.2 Trave| expendet

tared 1E1 713 1,186, 305% 307,714 1,703 566
Dadly Subsistencs Allawance and othar axpenses 168 166 1,173 357 156,530 1,486, 257
Total travel ecperas 349 878 2,369, 567 564,264 3,150,223
4 3: Supplies, consurmabled and other running costs

Office supplies and conswmables 100,080 102,043 121,718 151 G3E
Telecommunisations and nlarmation technology 1,585 530 1,236 321 1,769,258 1,460,635
Ranl, rates and msurance 1,475 153 1,473 B4R 1457 063 1,470 581
Utilities GEE 684 GE3, 831 05,674 T13.544
Sedical codts 1B 435 0,113 28 415 0713
Lirary books, magazines, subscrigtions 43 330 S0 1SE 258,165 265 630
Hodpitality 13,009 55,103 45,618 156 425
‘ehicle, local trandsaart and hotal scoamimodation 15 640 15 GEE 2B 717 40 326
Pastage, telephane and freght 2R S44 481,047 348,060 558 oE0
Eruiprment, furpiture and lacal prodwresment 1,135 475 247 165 1 169 407 155043
Building maintenance one 180 1,131, 755 511, 2B6 1,147 135
Other aperational casts - - 168,337 281 081
Total supplies, cansumabléd and othér running costs 6,274 367 5451974 7,015 858 G,646357
4.4: Codls related to trading activities

Cast of Sakes IMO Pubbeations 554, 661 Q&0 E0E 554,661 Q&0 BOE
Casl ol Sakes Model courdss E 510 156713 6,515 15671
Lovis an Phyiical |nveritory 1 683 |3,081) 1,682 |3,081}
fublicationd issued Tree of charge 5434 4 DOE 5,414 5008
fravEion lor retern of shiolate pubBcations 41 563 ED 136 41 563 BD 136
Arinting |cantract - owt| 13, 536 116,674 33,5316 154,500
Electronse publishing [IMO N ega) 180,020 150,500 180,030 GES By
Catering food and supplies 1B5 8203 GBS 873 185,802 116,674
fublic relations artached held by Wil - - 4,757 10,376
Total tosts related to trading activitiss 1008217 2,019 389 1,015,974 2,039,765
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Con sodidated
2030 2019

EBP EBP

45: Quttaurcad Larvices

Security services 48 46 434 630 IE4, 694 474,315
Cheaning services ER6 440 4318 710 517 845 505871
Telecammumications AT related services - - 65,587 42 620
Catering tervices - - 162 374 105,753
Laases 55590 45,343 55,590 45,343
i:l_lll.:.ll::.r..'q'.l dalivery af Technical Cooperation 845 235 1701 444 845 235 1,701 444
Total sutstwrced services 1,615 515 2,600,126 2,031 729 2,968 355

4.6: Training and development

Stafl traming 47577 Gg 7032 52, 581 147 2305
Fellowships 1,416,103 1,062 669 1,933 527 2577 3TE
Graup training including partcigant trasel 434 200 3535 657 I35 530 3 4E1 BRE
Stisdent costs (AWMU and I8ALL - - 207 220 332 714
Tatal training and develspment 1,858 279 4 697 008 2,532 BGT 6,628,017

47 Deprecialtion, amortizalion and impairment
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipmeart G55 IBD 615 881 18 1653 F46 070
Gan ot on disposal of progerty, plant and

[27 287} [23 200} 74
anuipment
Amortization af intangile aiets 106 601 538 BR5 154 003 Fo0 086
mpairment ol 180 publicationg 401 393 E5 275 401 3931 ES 275
Total depreciation, amortization and impairment 1,139 995 1,030 083 1350 358 1,181 505
4.8: Return of unspent funds 257 078 281 757 257 178 281 757
4.9 Other expended
laintly inanced UN bodias 130 183 102 E40 130 183 1032 &40
Bank charges 172 681 218 813 151 766 251 734
External sudit S0 160 O, D00 E6 D& of 28E
Othear milscEllaneo s sxparn e 144 B34 475 527 25T IED 618 &30
Total ether expernsas 4E7 BET BE6.970 655,310 1068 357
4.10: Currency axcharpe lowx 949 274 1,030.070 2 BES5 485 GEDAG4
151 staff and other perzonnel costsindude zalaries, fees, employes benefits and other costs azzociated with

st=ff, project ssperts and support personnel, consultsnts, temporary assistance and mesting personnel
linberpreters, translators and temporary employses) of all headguarters and field staiT employed by IO,

152 Travel includes the cost of the fares, 054 end other 2szociated expenses of the mission of st2ff members,
oroject experts and consultants. The costs of home leave travsl, recruitment travel 2nd repatristion trawvel are
reporied under 4.1 — 51aff and other personnel costs and the stedents' travel and field trips costs &re eccounted
for under 4.6 — Training and development.
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153 supplies, consurnables and other running costs primarily include the cost of running the hesdquarters
and field office buildings. including rent paid under the building lease with the Government of the United Kingdom
of £1,195,751 [201%9: £1,105,751).

154 Costs related to trading activities include the cost of all commercial sales within the meaning of
IP5AS 8 — "Revenus from Exchange Transsctions' but excludes staff costs 3nd common overhead costs.

155 outsourced services include the costs of the most significant outsourcing arrangements in place, namely
thiaz= for the provision of secunty, clesning and building managerment services. Sub-contracts under the technical
cooperation and extra-budgetary activities are also reported under thizs expsnse category.

156 Training and development include the cost of staf training incurred under the regular budget and the
Training and Development Fund, and the fellowship and group training costs incurred under the Technical
Cooperation Fund end various donor trust Funds.

157 Other expenses include shared costs of jointly financed UN bodies, public informeation {including IMO
Wews and publicity], bank charges and externz| audrt fees

MoTE 5: STATEMENT OF CoMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

158 Explanations of matsrial dfferences between the original budget and the finzl budgst 25 well as between
the finzl budgst and the actual amounts are pressnted under the Financial and Budgst Performance Highlights
saction of the Secretary-General’s Statemsent.

158 The Organization’s budget and accounts are preparsd on different basss. The Stetement of Financizl
Performance [Stetement W) is preparsd on & full acorual basis using & classfication based on the nature of
expenses, wheress the Ststement of Companson of Budget and Actual Amounts [Stetement V] is prepared on a
modified accruzal basis. In this respect, it is reguired under IPSAS 24 that actus! amounis presented in Statement
v should be reconciled to the actusl amounts presented in the financial statements, specifically the net cash flows
from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities, derived by identifying differences relating to
nasis, presentation and entity.

170 Ba:zis differences ocour when the approved budset is prepared on 2 basis other than the scoounting
oEsis. For IO, the budzget is prepared on & modified accruals basis and the financial statements are prepared on
a full aoccrusls basis in accordence with 19545, and 25 3 result basis differences anss in parbcular for long-term
assers and ligbilities. One examples iz Property, Plant and Equipment, whers budget expenditure is recognized on
the purchase of 2 new aszet whilz the IP5AS-baz=d expenditure recognized in Statement 1| shows deprecistion
over the life of the asset.

171 Entity differences occur when the budget omits programmes or entities that are part of the entity for
which the fingncial statements are preparsd. For MO, the Organization's extra-budgetary and donor-funded
orogrammes arg not 3 part of the budgetary approvel process of the Assembly and the Council and so are not
included in Stetement v, and conssgquently, the revenus and expenses relating to such programmes are an entity
difference.

172 Prezentation differences occur 25 3 result of differsnces in the formst and classification schemes adopted
for the pressntation of the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual
Amounis, in particular in relation to the reflection of transfers from the surplus of the Trading Fund which then
forms the basis for a proportion of the approved budzet of other Funds. These amounts are shown separately for
oudset comparison purposes but are eliminabed when preparing the overall IMO position shown in Statements 1l
and Iv.
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173 Timing differences ocour when the budgst period differs from the reporting period reflected in the
financizl statements. Thers is no timing difference for IMO, for the purposes of comparizson between budget and
actual amounts.

174 The reconciliation between the actual amounts on & cormparable basis in the Statement of Comparizon
of Budzet and Actual amounts [Statement W) and the actual amounts in the Statement of Cash Flow [Statement
v} for the year ended 31 December 2020 is shown below. Budget amounts have been presentsd on 3 functional
classification basiz in accordance with the approved budget for 2020, which presents s breakdown of the budgst
for purposes of the above comparizon. The amount of surplus of £3,475,301 for 2020 shown in Statement Wa
{ILdT onby] has besen reconciled o the net increase in cash and cash eguivalents of £7,375,498 presented in
statsment IV (INO 2020), 2nd the details of the reconcilistion are presented in the table below. Operating activities
in the table below includes two figurss shown separately in statement IV — the effect of exchange rate changes on
cazh and cash equivalents of £45,612.

Ckpe rating Imeesking Fimancing

Ad|ustments pertaining to cash flows from: activities activities activitins

k0 GRP G AP L BIP !
Actual amounts ona comparab ke basls as presenied nthe

Budget and Actual com paratve Statement A 3475301 247530
Hasis differences L 11177921} IZET B5E) (151,713} 11,597 5H)
tntiy differences (b} 5,203,714 (16 a2R) % AET,08E
Fresentatian differences ic| 0E12 0E1R
Tatal Cifferences ea+b+r 4,336,395 | ZH4 254 151,713} L. 900,198

ACTUAL AMDUNTS IN THE STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS TAHILETE (284 484) A5 480

175 The reconciliztion of the amount of surplus of £4,525,156 shown in 5tstement Vio [Consolidsted 2020
including WU and IMLI) has zlso been made 1o the net increzse in cash and cash eguivelents of £7,547,405
indicated in Statement IV (Consclidated 2020), &5 shown in the table below. While IMO's budzet is approved by
the IMO assemnbly, the budgsts of WHU and ML are approved by their separaste soverning bodies — the Board of
Govermnors (Wkd} and the Govemning Bosrd (IMLI. Az neither WAL nor IMLIS budgsts are approved by IM0's
governing body, the 1840 Azzambly, both are treated as entity differences in the reconciliation table shown below
with 2 total amount of £1,177,248 for both WkiU and IRLL

Ciperating Imeesting Financing

Ad|ustments pertaining to cash flows from: activities activities activities

Comso | daked -l LEP LBP !

Actual amounts ona comparab ke basls as presenied nthe

Budget and Actual com paratve Statement A 4.H23,138 4823138
Hasis differences Laj |L17T. 921 1 ZET B5E) 1158,713) 11,597 5H)
tntiy differences ibi 4,639,562 (350,4825) 4,705,137
Fresentatian differences icl 0E12 0E1R
Tatal Cifferences Hea+bsr L8921 143 1518 281) 151,713} I, 7211 1449

ACTUAL AMDUNTS IN THE STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS B A17 x4 (612 x81)

176 Az nioted in peragraph 169, IMO's budgst is preparsd on 3 ‘modified accrusls” basis, while both Wil
and IMLI budzet on & full accruals basis.
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MoTE 62 SEcGMENT REPORTING

Mote 6.1: Segmental 5tatements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020

MNote 6.1.1: Statement of Financial Position by Segment — IMO

Technical
Core Tradingand 5 f";l__ _
> a
Programme B S8 .t-.-*L'I'- "fr ) !L'Iul:l Elimination Grand Total
o Clivilies A
Management furtivities Trisst Fund
GEP GEP GEP GEP GEP
AREETE
Current ai8eld
Caih and caih aquivalents 34,855 JES 5,636 560 40,7735 504 [B5, 697} 81,156 566
Cantribulions recajvabla 305 791 - 303 256 - JTES D40
meenlories - 474 G645 - - 474 S45
Bdwances 1o sub-contractans - - G617 261 - G617 261
mler-iegment surms recenable 306 034 13,538 BB D8 (475 655 -
ther receivables — exchange transactions 2,006 005% 172 796 184 840 - 2 ER3 641
Total Current Asseds 37,653,617 6,297 848 41,991 344 (541,347 85,401,452
Hon-currént asials
fraperty, plant and equipmearnit 1,162 576 15 604 40481 - 1,235 06l
ntangible assati B 59E - - - B S9E
Total nan-current asiels 1171974 5,604 40 481 - 1,248 059
TOTAL ASSETS 38,8735 591 5,333 457 42,031 825 (541, 347) 85,649 521
LIAGILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables and socruals - exchange transactions 1,005 853 G5 811 1,157 02 [B5 693} 2 556 GO0
:'...".'dbll-::. and stcruals — nan-exchangs 2,347,383 ) 3 287 795 ) & 535,175
Iransactions
Praveions lor warranbies - £3 811 - - 53 811
nlar-segment sums payable 15800 105 J0E 16 147 (475 655 -
Employes banselits 215 540 B411 1 54E - 234 508
Finance leage liabilites 101 82 - - - 101 82
Tatal current lialsilities 3,708 400 535,745 4, 789517 (541 347} #3582 324
Haon-currént liabilitias
Imploves bapelit 51,050,084 - - - 51,060 8584
Total nan-current liahilitias 51,060 884 - - - 51,060 884
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54 8558 793 535,745 4, 789517 541,347) 59 643 208
MET ASSETS {16,033 702}
FUND BALANCES SMD RESERVES
fund balances and retergad 117,115 104} 10,214 BG5 28 447 526 - 21547 28T
S plugfldehcat] Tor the year 1,081 407 4,417 15E 8,754 783 - 5 455 026

TOTAL FUND BALAMNCES AMD RESERVES {16,033, 702) 1.1 ] 27,006,313
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Mote 6.1.2: Statement of Financial Position by S5egment — Consolidated

GEFP
Cone Trading and _TEH"IE
Frogramme Business Soetparation Educatian Elimination  Grand Total
Managemant Artivities AEI:II.'1I|:= and  and Ressarch
" nast Fund

AS5ETS
Current assets
Cash and tash rgubalenis L4 HEE THE 5,B35,5E5 40,719,304 18,411,571 185,692 59,578,137
Contribations receivable 395,743 353,258 9,698 THE, TAS

e nbaries 474 945 ES,251 123,538} 515,654
Advances o sub-contracton ELT.ZEL 417281

nber-segmant sama receivable 356,034 13,538 [Z=fal k) |475,655]
Other recehables — exchange transactions 2,006 005 171,796 184 840 43,274 L, 206915
Other recekabies — non-exchange transacthons A0 27E ZHO4TE
Tatal Current Asseis A7 EE3 01T 157 248 41,591,344 19,873 2ES (564 BB 108 201,193
Mon-current asseis

ekt ment in bonds 1,175,153 1,175,153
Praparty, plant ana equipment 1162376 15,504 40,2481 133 810 1&71 881

ntangible assets 59498 53 446 103 424
Tatal non-current assets 1,171,874 A5 504 40,481 2,502,415 . 1 750478
TOTAL ASSETS 38,425 551 §,333 452 42,021 828 X2 305 5RE [564,285) 108951671
LIABILITIES
Current liabilites

Payablkes and acorneats - eachange transactians 1,159,852 365,813 1157016 318,316 1&5,692] I 885315
Payables and acorisat = non-eAchange 2,347,383 3,287,796 §,152,1E2 [98E,E91) 10,840,550
transactions

Praviions for warranties 53,813 531213

nbEr-segmant sima payabhe 219,800 109, 708 336,147 |475,655]

Emiphoee henetits 119,545 6411 B,548 45,566 20074
Finanoe ease abities 100,825 1225
Tatal current [labilithes 3,758 408 G35 745 4,789 817 6 568044 (1528 038) 14,1E1477
Marecurrent liabiltles

Emphoyes benetits =1,060 504 1,519,602 52,580 48E
Tatal non-current bl ities 51,060,884 . . 1,519,502 - 52 GEOABE
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,855,293 535,745 4,784,517 BOEnE4E  [151B038) EE741,163

MET ASSETS

FUND BALAKNCES AND RESERVES
Fund balances and reseres
surplusfideficit] far the year

TOTAL FUND BALAMCES AMD RESERVES

(16,03, F2)

117,115,104
1,081 802
(16,03, F2)

10,114 BES

| #2,417,155]

AT, 147 308

18,447 516
8,754, 7H1
AT, 147 308

14,340 041

13,702,215
537823
14,340 041

Thl 523
401,230
ELENLE]

42 205 508

15,811 434
5,398 054
42 205 508
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Note 6.2: Segmental Statements of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 December 2020

hote 6.2.1: Statement of Financial Performance by 5egment — IMO

Core Trading and _T|:~:I1'1-r:=-|
Frogramme Business Cooparaton EBmiination Grand Todal
Managemant Activitles ACEhities and
Trust Fund
GHEP zBP =zBFP

REVENLE
fssessed contrbutians 23,391,000 33,391,400
Donor yodankary cantributions 13,230,358 121,230,198
Comimaercial actiitins 442 513 5,324,370 aT1,266 0,198,145
[T [T o [ 165,356 18,784 163,738 167 H1B
SUppoM oosls eamed 1,130,506 11,120,506]

b St transfers B, 8Th 05 E,EST 399 113,533,453
TOTAL REVEMLUE 42,005,358 5,433,154 19,432,701 [14,EE3,95%) 5B, 157,264
DApenss

Staff and other personnel costs 31367 972 1,191,277 4,137,811 36, 797 UTT
Travel ExpeEnses TEADE 12,250 154,180 438TE
Supplies, consumahles and ather running casts 4,003 058 1,0E6,755 1,113,513 E,23336T
Cost related to trading activithes 1,008,217 1,008,217
Outsourped Services 05, BB 648 EI0 845,239 1,615,515
Traindng and dewelopmeent 47877 1,250,303 1,898,273
Supporn casts charged 55E.H33 5T1ET2 11,130,506

Depreciation, amomization and imaainmeint 74,540 412,17 17,438 1,033,856
Return of unspent funds 157,772 1577
Other Expenses 2], 324 112,E24 114,909 457 85T
riber-segment transfers 4,753,811 H,3T73,000 406,543 [13,533,453)

TOTAL EXPENSES A0, 546,802 13,221,224 9674757 [14,B52.455] 45,778,964

OPERATING SLRPLLS/DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Currency exchangs gaing|loss|

SURPLUS/IDERCIT) FOR THE YEAR

1,058,464
12,935

1 L] A

{4,398, Ernd)
1149,0=8]

14,417, 158)

5,747,904

1953, 132}

B, a4, o2

B, 408,300
| ey, 2T

5,459,006
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Note 6.2.2: Statement of Financial Performance by 5egment — Consolidated

GEP
Cpare Trading and _TEI:'1I1|G
Programami Business “oaperation Educatian Ellménation  Gramd Tokal
Management Ackivties .'-I.Etll.-ﬂn: and  and Research
: st Fund
Revenue
BsnEnsad Contrinutns 13,351 (0 13,391,000
Dainor vodsnkary cantribations 12,230,248 b, 483 601 15,713375
Commercial activiting 442,512 3,384,270 IT1.ZEE 1,444 B35 |™,45%] 11,573,535
Fallivwship h,753,3495 {925,913 5,HIE0HE
CIEREr T En 1ES, 296 15, THY 163,738 283340 |&d, 022 587,736
Suppomn casts aamed 1,130,506 i1, 1340,508|
bR S transfiers b HTE,054 b,B5T, 395 113,533,453
TATAL REVEMLE 42,005 I8 9,433,154 19,432 701 14,966,455 (15 724,348) 0,083,336
Expenses
Staff and othier personnel cosis W1, 36T ATE Z,151.277 £,337 831 EE19.421 18,854 45,409,644
Travel BxnEnses Ta A8 11,290 159,180 114 386 564, 2E4
Supplies, consumables amnd ather running onsks £ 033098 1,086,756 1,113,513 755,211 L&, 720] TO1E 858
Cost related Eo brading activites 1008217 4,757 1002974
QuEsouroed Serviies TOEAER B4 510 H4%5,239 416,214 2,031,725
Traindng and cevelopmeent 47977 1,850,202 2,033 596 £1,3939, 10| 2,531 .8ET
Support casts charged 558533 571473 1,230,508
D preciation, amorization and imgainm et TR, 540 41Z ALY 17,835 210,363 1,350,358
Return of unspent funds 157,778 257,77
OthEr mxpsnGeEs 260,224 113,634 114305 155, 506 | 28,053 E55,21D
nber-segment transfers 4, 753911 B aAT3000 085,541 113,533,453|
TOTAL EXPENSES 40,545,302 13,821,224 9,E74,7597 13,489,553  (1E,102,654) &0,839,782

OPERATING SURPLUS/ | NEFIOIT) FOR THE

YEAR 1,058 466 (4,358 ,070) 9,747 904 Z,478 3906 378,348 9,163,554
Y

CUrrEmcy r:.ch.'.rg_o EAA

11936 119,085 (953,121 11,939,083 11872 (2,865,485

SLARPLLIS [DEFEIT) FOR THIE YEAR 1,081 40 (4,417, 158) 5,0, PHY S35 Hd3 40,20 b, 356 (5

177 some internal actvities result in accounting transactions which creste inter-segment revenue and
expensze balances in the financial stetements. Intsr-segment transactions gre reflected in the sbove statements to
accurstely present these financial statements, the most significant examples of which ars the Council-mandated
transfers from the Trading Fund to other organizetional funds. The aggregate amount was £8,373,000 of which
£5,383,480 was to the Technical Cooperation Fund and £2.00%5,520 was to the Core Programme. In additon, there
are support costs totalling £571,673 charged on sxtra-budgstary activities and £558,633 charged to the Trading
Activiti=s to reimburse costs incurred by the Core Programme.

178 IO provides funding support to WU B IBLI 0 fimance their fellowship program, which is recognised
as revenue by WU and IMLI and expenditure for IMO. In the consolidasted notes, revenue totalling £587,412
|2019: £733,457} and expenditure totalling £1,056,550 {2019: £441 578} between IMO and WU, and revenue
totalling £372,575 (2019: £358,987) and expendrture totalling £401, 147 (2019: £272,392]} between IMO and IkLI,
nave been included in the s=gment reporting figures and eliminzted in arriving at the consclidated position. The
elimination has resulted in 3 net effect of increasing the surplus by £401,220{2019: decrease of £376,175). Further
information on the nature of thess transactions is provided in Note 8.2,

178 & brief summary of the goods and services provided under each s=gment, and their objectives, is s=t out
in Mote 1, paragraphs 43 1o 48,
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MoTe 72 CoOMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

Mote 7.1: Commitments

180 453t 31 December 2020, IMO had commitments for goods and services including consultancy contracted
out niat defivered 2= follows:

020 A0
GEBF GEP
Purchase of services including consultancy 2,639,417 2,307,827
181 The actual discharge of the 2018 commitments in 2020 is £1,5664,830, the breskdown of which is shown
oelow:
200
Commitrments discharge
GEP GEP
Regular budget stratsgc results 156,451 126,587
Treding activities £5,724 £5,139
Hezdguarters capital 259,1E8 265,225
Training and development =11 -
Termination benefit -
Technical cooperation (TC Fund)] 444,271 361,020
Eub-total Sdi, 7oa 821 981
Technical cooperation [Donor Funds) 1,366,127 842 B5E
TOTAL 2 30T BXTF 1,664,839
18z Meither WhU nor IMLI has commitrnents or contingencies &t the year end and consequently the figures

shown sbove reflect the consolidated position 3z well.
MNote 7.2: Legal or Contingent Liabilities

183 &5 gt 31 December 2020, thers are no contingent liskilities arizing from legal actions and claims that are
ikehy to result in a significant liabiltty to IMO and to the consclidated group.

184 The Orgenization, in conjunction with UNMDP, conducted 3 review of all historical balances undsr the
UMCP Service Clearing Account (SCA), and its predecessor the Interoffice Woucher {1I0W] scheme, under which
UMCP provides services to other UN system crganizations, and the Project Clearing &ccount [PCA], through which
UMCP acts as & donor for IMC extra-budgetary activities. While the Organization's financial statements reflect
amendments arising as 3 result of that review, there remains a net difference on the PCA scoounts of 5685,838,
as 8t 31 December 20132, between IMO and UMDP. Thers had been discussions between IMO 2nd UNDP an the
resolution of this difference and currently still on-going with the relevant supporting documents are being located
oy both parties.
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MoTE B: Losses, EX-GraTia PAYMENTS, WRITE-OFFS AND CASES OF FRAUD

185 Financial Regulation 10.3 provides that "The Secretary-Esneral may maks such sx-gratiz payments as he
deems to be necessary in the interest of the Organization, provided that 3 statement of such payments shall be
subrmitted to the Asssmbly with the financizl statements”. During 2020, one =:-gratis payment amounting to
£30,000 was made to one staff member upon separation.

186 Financial Regulation 10.4 provides that “The Secretary-Eeneral may, sfter full investigation, suthorize
the writing off of losses of cash, stores and other assets, provided that 3 stetement of 3ll such amounts written off
shall be submitted ta the Externsl Auditor with the financial statements.” During 2020, irrscoverable receivables

resulted in write-offs to the amount of £3,588 for IMO and for the consolidated group £15,167.

187 During 2020, no case of reported fraud or presumptive fravd was reported.

MoTe 9: RELATED ParTES aMD KEY MAanacEMENT PERSOMNMEL
Mote 9.1: Key Management Personnel

Dutstanding

Tatal Lasane snd

Mumber of individuals  Compensation and — Pension and S —— Adhuanees
[Full Time Equivabent) post adjustm ent CHEIEES health plans T oo o

against
entithements
3112 2030

A0

GEP

1540

1,370, 496 139 136 . 1,843 B5F

Conspolidated

1,516 061 134,136 457,583

188 Key management personnel of MO are the Sscretary-General and the eight Divisional Directors and
Cepartmental Chief. ¥ey management personnel of the consolidated group include the President of the Wil
and the Director of the 1ML, 25 they have the suthaority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the consolidated group. Curing the period from 1 January to 4 Movember 2020, a Senior Deputy
Cirector was covering the vacant post of one of the Divisional Director, as such the total staff cost for the period was
included in the total rermuneration for 2020.

18D The aggregate remuneration peid o key mansgement personne! includes: net zalaries, post adjustment,
entitlernents (such as represenistion allowance and other allowances); sssignment and other grants; rental
subsidy; personal effects shipment costs; and employer pension; and current health insurance contributions,. The
outstending advances represents the amount paid against the education grant entitlement 1o ons key management
cerzonnel which iz wildly available to all Organization staff. Mo close family member of the key management
cersonnel was employed by the Organization during the year.

120 Key management personnel are also gualified for post-employment benefits [Mote 2.11) &t the same
gvel 25 other employess. Ksy management personnel of IMO sre participants of UNISPF.
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Mote 9.2: Related Parties

121 The Orgenization's only related parties within the meaning of IP5AS 20 — "Related Party Disclosures” are
the UN International Computing Centre {1CC), WU and IMLL The consolidated group, including those bodies, has
no related partiss.

13z The ICC was established in Janusry 1971 pursusnt to Resolution 2741 (000 of the United Nations
Zenerzsl Azsembly. T provides Information Technology and Communications services to Partners and Users in
the United Wations System. A5 & Partner bound by the mandate of the ICC, IMO would be proportionabely
responsible for any third-party daim or liakility arizing from or related 1o service actvities of the 1ICC as specified
in the ICC Mandate. As &t 31 December 2020, there are no known claims that impact IMO. Ownership of aszets
iz with 1CC until diszolution. Upon dissolution, the division of all assets and lizbilites amongst Partner Organizetions
shall b= agreed by the kMansgement Committze by a formula defined &t that time.

153 Dwuring 2020, IO provided £538,415 [2019: £4441,878) and £366,010 (2019: £278,274) in fellowship and
other funding to WU and ML, respectvely, under its Technical Cooperation Programme. Thess amounts are
reflected in expenditure in the IO figures and have been eliminated on conzclidation. Fellowship revenus from
IO o Wikl totalling £550,318 [2018: £6830,771) and to IMLI of £335,535 (2049: £353,112] have also been
eliminated.

MoTe 10: OTHER CHAamMGES IN MET ASSETS

124 An exchange rete differences arose due to the effect of converting the opening net asssts of Wil and
InLIL, whose functional currencies are Swedish Krona and Eurc respectively, at the 2020 closing rate which differs
from the Z01% closing rats. and such changes are pressnted &5 & separete component of net assetsfequity In
accordance with IPSAS 4.

Wil iMILI TOTAL
EEP GEP GBEP
Clasing balance st 3112 2000 exchange rate 10,156 644 3036 852 13,193 704
Opening balance ot 01.01. 2020 exchange rate 11185422 3244 082 14,428,514

1,028,578 . 1,235 RiE

MoTe 11: Events ArTer REPORTING DATE
135 IMO's reporting date is 31 December 2020, On the date of the signing of these acoounts, there had been

n0 material events, favourable or unfavourzhble, inturred between the balance sheet dzte and the date when the
financizl statements wers authorized for issue that would have impacted these statements.
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